Editorial: 



‘ABNORMALCY NORMALCY’
             
Often the diplomats, foreign journalist while visiting the office of Jammu and Kashmir Coalition of Civil Society (JKCCS) emphasize, that things are now turning normal in Kashmir valley. The level of violence has gone down, tourism has restored, golf course, international conferences are taking place and business activities have increased. They also relate normalcy with controlling of militancy. Most of them who have visited the Kashmir valley in early 90’s feel discernible changes, when shops used to close before dawn, the incidents of violence were high, people had become the hostage of daily hartals (strikes) and the militancy was at its peak. The people those days were living like rats; hold up in their homes. Occasionally, the massacres were taking place and the outsiders observed the ubiquitous frightening presence of army. For those visitors it could be the improvement. The government conscious of the concern of highly militarization of Kashmir, with the passage of time particularly after 20’s initiated measures to camouflage the situation, the haphazard bunkers were concretely shaped and beautified; the presence of army was reduced in cities. Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) replaced the regular army. It was initiated by the govt. to impress the visitors, diplomats and Kashmir watchers that things have turned normal and situation will be back to pre-insurgency position. Notwithstanding, the harassment, forced labor, custodial deaths and enforced disappearances have become a way of life, particularly for the people living in rural or inaccessible areas due to mountains and hills. They have become used to it. The only difference is at the beginning of the insurgency it was something unusual, shocking and awesome. The brute force of the state was unexpected and thereby hundreds and thousands of people used to protest when there was any custodial death, rape or molestation. Now almost for fifty years the conflict is continuing and even new generation has come for whom the things are normal. The fatigue has taken to the people who are watching helplessly the state brute force. The militarization of 700 thousand troops who are virtually controlling the lives of Kashmiris is normal. Due to militarization, deforestation, environmental degradation, the hazards on agriculture, horticulture, and wildlife adjacent to lands under the occupation of army are normal. The intrusion into the privacy of the citizens is normal. 

Despite normalcy claimed by the state the army is acquiring more and more land even in areas, which does not fall near then line of actual control where structure are made permanent. So is the case with police, more and more recruitment is being made in the police and the target is that 78 thousand police force will be raised to 200 thousand police forces, in fact police will be militarized. And all this parallel, covert and hidden process is being intensified with passage of time and that too to control the lives of people, to change their culture, to break their will and making them feel they are helpless. People speaking about the normalcy have to study the impunity given to the army, which is intact under AFSPA, as in conflict areas the accountability is least and only an international intervention can force accountability from the state for crimes against humanity. The facade of normalcy and peace is being sold in international community particularly the diplomats and corporate media to impress upon them to disengage themselves from the conflict, which has scared the international community once particularly after 1998 when the Kashmir after the nuclear explosion by two belligerent nations India and Pakistan made Kashmir a flush point.

The point is first what normalcy is? According to dictionary meaning normalcy is ordinary or usual state, the same as would be expected. For Kashmiri, the normalcy is that they are completely living at the mercy of huge number of army and facade of democracy; the state government has no mandate over the policies of army. Nevertheless, the Chief Minister heads the unified chief command, which is just the nominal position. The other important thing is that a new generation has come up after the conflict, which has grown as conflict kids and for them the daily happening, is very normal. Only a minuscule of affluent class have sent their children out of the valley for educations, which again creates an ideological difference between the two generations of Kashmir, one born in conflict and other grown in non-conflict areas. The human rights violations are continuing but has minimized to large extent but it is not question of numbers it is a structural issue, the issue of the universally recognized aspirations of people, and their decision making in the governments, which affects their rights and the rights of the posterity and the laws in operation for decades circumventing their rights. Otherwise, even the jail inmates possess certain rights, they also are being provided some limited freedom or the animals in zoo also enjoy privileges. The situation as ordinary Kashmiri does believe is same and still continuing. As facing of five to six army camps on the way while going to working places, displaying of identity cards and living under the policing of the army has become their normal way of life. For ordinary Kashmiri normalcy is the life of the conflict where one has to live as a subject not as the citizen.
WHERE TO SEARCH MY SON?

On May 10, 2007, a laborer working at Rajbagh, Maqsood Ahmad Badder, 24, son of Mohammad Akram Badder resident of Zalangam, Kokernag, about 80 kms from Srinagar in the south Kashmir, got disappear after moving out from his temporary residence at Rajbagh, Srinagar. Maqsood’s family searched him in the nook and corner of valley and approached police and other security agencies to locate him. Despite all the efforts Maqsood’s whereabouts remained a mystery. 

Mohammad Akram Badder, father of the Maqsood approached office of The Informative Missive and narrated the tale of his son’s disappearance and effects on him and his family. 

Mohammad Akram Stated, “My son and I were working at the Rajbagh as laborers. On May 10, 2007, we did not get any work and stayed at our temporary residence in Lords Favor Hospital and Nursing Home, Rajbagh, where my son in law is working as an employee. On the fateful day, both of us were at the residence. In the morning Maqsood started to wash clothes and finished the work at around 1:00 pm. At about 1:30pm I told him that I would offer noon prayers. He in return replied that he would have a walk outside. With this he left the residence never to return.”

He added, “I was waiting for his return up to late evening, but he did not came back. I then left outside and enquired from the shopkeepers, passer byes and from neighbors about Maqsood but nobody had any knowledge about him. Somehow I passed the distressing night with the hope that he might have gone to native village Zalangam. Next day I went to Zalangam but he had not gone there. These circumstances enhanced my worries and that of my family. I also went to see him at every relative’s house but got no clue.  I then approached Police Station, Kokernag for filing a missing report but the officials there directed me to approach Police Station, Rajbagh. I then reached Police Station RajBagh and filed a missing report under number 14, dated 27/05/07. Nevertheless, police proved helpless in ascertaining the whereabouts of my son.  Many people told me that laborers go to Uri for work; I also went there but found nothing. Even I visited Ramban, Udhampur, Jammu and other far-flung place but all in vane.”

He further groused, “Maqsood had been betrothed with Nageena of Rayan, Aather, Kokernag and was about to get married in the last quarter of 2007. This hope remained only a dream for my family and me. Neither my son was associated with militancy nor to any political or non-political organization. I also approached SHRC (State Human Rights Commission) and filed a petition but nothing happened.”  

“He had dedicated his life for the family and was contributing to the study of his younger brothers, Sabzar Ahmad and Shahnawaz, who are in the 9th standard. He sacrificed his life for building the future of his brothers and sisters. He joined work in the early age, started carpet weaving at his house. But when the carpet business got affected in the early 2000 we father and son decided to go to Srinagar for livelihood. We came to Srinagar in 2002 and started the work of selling corncob at Rajbagh. Maqsood used to fetch the Corn from Fruit Market, Parimpora and was also known to everyone there. The selling of corncobs is seasonal and for the rest of the year we used to work as laborers, to make our both ends meet. Despite being a loyal son, he was a loving brother. He got his elder sister, Maroofa married and was now preparing for the marriage of younger sister apart from assisting other family needs.  He was very kind, out of all my children. All my hopes were lying on him. The disappearance of my beloved son has rendered me sick. I am unable to work, I don’t understand, who would assist my family and me. Till I am alive I would make all possible efforts to trace my son but presently I am so much distressed, I don’t comprehend where to search him ”, concluded Mohammad Akram.

LOCAL CRPF PERSONNEL ALLEGEDLY IMPLICATED IN FALSE MILITANCY CASE   

On February 25 Police claimed arrest of a paramilitary CRPF trooper for his alleged links with militants from south Kashmir’s Pulwama district. Police had arrested Mudasir Ahmad Bhat, 22, of Botengo village in Sopore on February 20 for allegedly planting an IED fitted in a steel glass at the battalion headquarters of the CRPF in Pulwama. Bhat was later terminated from the service.

While Family said Mudasir was on leave when police claimed that they had arrested a militant namely Mudasir while planting an IED fitted in a steel glass at the battalion headquarters of the CRPF in Pulwama.

From past three years Mudasir was working as a constable with CRPF Unit and was posted at the battalion headquarters of the CRPF in Pulwama. 

While talking to Informative Missive Mudasir’s father Mohammed Yousuf Bhat said, “It was 2nd February; some police officials raided our house and were asking about Mudasir. They took Mudasir in a separate room and were enquiring about some thing that was not disclosed to family members. After half an hour they took him and left the house, saying “don’t worry. We are his colleagues. He will be back soon,” discloses Yousuf. 

However, Mudasir failed to return home. On next day Yousuf and his brother Janan approached Sopore Police Station and filed a report against his abduction. “The police officials refused to lodge any report”, said Yousuf. 

They informed us that he is detained in Pulwama Police Station and will be here in daytime. If possible you can meet him here”, added Yousuf 

Yousuf and his son Janan waited for the whole day to meet Mudasir but he was not brought there.

Next day at 8 pm, Mudasir called his father on phone from Rajbagh Police Station. He told Yousuf to come along with all village heads to Raj Bagh Police Station at 11 a.m. He also directed him to inform him on the same mobile number while reaching there. Yousuf did the same what Mudasir directed him. “On reaching Raj Bagh Police Station, I called Mudasir on the same number but the call was received by another person who told us to wait for 15 minutes,” said Yousuf. “After fifteen minutes, we were allowed to meet SHO Raj Bagh Police Station. He disclosed that Mudasir was arrested because one of his colleagues (name not mentioned) had a love affair with a girl residing in Srinagar. Mudasir was with them when his colleague and the girl rushed out from valley. Now the case is clear we will release him in couple of days”, Yousuf added.

However, Mudasir was not released. They approached Raj Bagh Police station again but they told yousuf, he is shifted to Nowgham Police Station.

It was Saturday. On reaching Nowgham police station where Mudasir was detained, SHO Police Station again assured us that they are going to release him on Monday. But he was not released; later on they avoided his release on one pretext or the other. 

Yousuf said “Fifteen days later while watching a regional television channel he heard a police official saying that they have arrested a militant namely Mudasir Ahmed Bhat in Sopore while traveling in a vehicle (Sumo). The police also claimed that they recovered some arms and ammunition (1 mine, 1 grenade and 5 rounds of bullets) from him”. “Next day a report was also published in a local daily in which police claimed that they arrested a militant namely Mudasir while planting an IED fitted in a steel glass at the battalion headquarters of the CRPF in Pulwama”,said Yousuf. 

 
Two days before they got a letter from his Unit seeking explanation. They asked Mudasir to report immediately. Later they send a dismissal order to Pulwama Police station, which states that he is dismissed from his duties.  

Police Version: 

Quoting SSP Pulwama Nitish Kumar, a local news agency KNS said the police stopped a vehicle at Tahab Chowk and conducted routine searches. “During searches, police arrested Mudassar Yousuf Bhat son of Muhammad Yousuf of Botengoo Sopure working with 183 Bn CRPF and recovered an IED weighing about one and half kilograms fitted in a steel glass and a hand grenade,” the SSP said. 

 
He said the headquarter of 183 Bn is based in the premises of DC office Pulwama. Muhammad Yousuf, SSP said was going to Pulwama from Newah.

During preliminary investigation, the SSP said, it has surfaced that the arrested CRPF man had links with Hizbul Mujahideen. Police has registered a case.

SAGA OF TAHIR MIR’S TORTURE
Tahir Ahmad Mir, 48, spokesperson of the pro-freedom party, Jammu & Kashmir Liberation Front (JKLF), hailing from downtown area, Kalashpora, Babademb, Khanyar, spent around a decade in custody, for resorting to armed struggle against India in late 80’s. While serving his detention he was tortured many a times at different interrogation centers that made him frail and feeble. 

While talking to The Informative Missive about the atrocities inflicted on him, he stated, “In 1982 I got the admission in Kashmir University in the department of commerce. Apart from my study I used to protest continuously against the subjugation of the people of Kashmir. I was first time arrested in the year 1984 after I along with my colleagues protested in the Kashmir University against the unjust hanging of Mohammad Maqbool Bhat in Tihar Jail. Three months after the protest, some CID personnel arrested me from my residence. I was taken to the Red – 16, interrogation center, Sonawar, Srinagar, where I was beaten severely for 20 days, after which I was shifted to the central Jail Sriangar after being booked under Public Safety Act (PSA) and got released in 1985.”

He added, “In late 1985 I was gain arrested from the university campus on the charges of carrying out anti India activities in the campus. First I was taken to the Police Station, Nigeen and then to Red – 16, interrogation center, Sonawar. Here I was beaten for a week and was shifted to Central Jail under PSA. I then was released in last quarter of 1986 after the court quashed my detention.”


“After joining armed struggle in 1988 I was once again arrested on 21st June 1989 at Parimpora along with another activist, Khursheed Ahmad Chalkoo, while traveling to Muzaffarabad. I was once again taken to the Red – 16, Sonawar. I was detained there for around a month and was thrashed incessantly. On this arrest I was booked under TADA (Terrorist and Disruptive Activities) Act and was jailed in Central Jail, Srinagar. Then I was released on bail on 22nd June 1990.” Said Tahir 

He further stated, “After the release I joined Students Liberation Front (SLF) as the Publicity Chief. While carrying the activities of SLF I was again arrested by the BSF troops on the 10th December 1990 from a residential house at Lal Bazar. I was taken to the temporary torture center Tatoo ground, Batamaloo, where five BSF cops beat me severely by gun buts and Bamboo sticks, that made me unconscious and I fell on the ground. I got injured with severe beating. After few hours I was shifted to PAPA – 1 interrogation center at Gogo land old Airport. There I was confined naked in a cell with minus temperature and the BSF personnel began to torture me again. My legs and body were rolled over by a heavy wooden pole, by which I could not move for twenty days. There I was being served with contaminated and grimy food with sedatives in it. After the solitary confinement of around one month in PAPA – 1, I was shifted to another torture center, PAPA – 2, Sonwar. There I was thrashed continuously for twenty days, which rendered me half dead. From PAPA – 2, I was taken to JIC, Harniwas, Sonwar. There I was held in a dark cell devoid of ventilation for one month. Then blindfolded with hands tied on my back, BSF personnel took me to the airport, there I was bundled in the luggage store of cargo plane and moved to Kot-Bhalwal, Jail, Jammu. There on April 21st, 1991, an IB (Intelligence Bureau) officer whipped me with Aluminum cable on the back, shoulders and thighs. 17 years have passed and the blemishes of cable lashing are still apparent on my back. That time I had a narrow escape from death. However, one of my fellow detainees, Mohammad Abas Beigh, died for want of medical treatment. He was not given any medical care after being severely tortured. After two weeks of torture in Kot-Bhalwal, I was shifted to Central Jail, Jammu.”

“In the year 1992, from Jammu Jail, I was referred back to CRPF torture center, Hariniwas, where troops again started to torture me. I was incessantly struck on the head by a Bamboo stick till I fell unconscious. I was beaten on the head in such a way, as I was about to lose my memory. I was detained there for about one month and beaten harshly. In this torture center teenage youth were brought and were given electric shocks on their private organs, which was routine practice there”, Revealed Tahir.

‘During the course of torture, I was treated only once and that too at the time of last torture at Hariniwas, A doctor from Police Control Room was brought to the Torture center and had my check up. But the medical reports were not provided to me, so that I could have got medicine purchased from the market. I thought that reports were not provided just to conceal the atrocities inflicted on me. No medicines were provided after the medical check up. Lastly when I was shifted to the central jail Srinagar, there we used to have the medicines, which were being fetched by the family inmates of the detainees. Finally in the year 1999, I was released on bail and the case still lies pending against me in the court of law”, concluded Tahir Ahmad.

TORTURE TESTIMONIALS
CASE 01

Name: Bashir Ahmad Rather

Residential: Dangerpora, Sopore

Gender: Male

Age: 35 years

Date of arrest: 17 June 1993 

Place: Dangerpora, Sopore

Agency involved: Indian army (unit not identified) 

On June 17, 1993 Bashir Ahmad Rather was arrested in Dangerpora Sopore. Bashir said, “I was a core member of a militant outfit. When army officials arrested me, they took me to the Boys Degree College hostel. That time the hostel was turned into in an army camp. Many army personnel viciously tortured me there and later shifted me to Rajasthan Jail. ” 

While narrating the torture methods that Indian army used Bashir said, “The way Indian army tortured Kashmiris are very horrendous. On the first day of my detention I was hanged up side down continuously for three days and army personnel beat me ruthlessly. Then they rolled iron rod on my legs and back.  Two officials exerted pressure on the both sides of rod and that had crushed down my thigh muscles. They plucked flesh of buttocks and rubbed the wounds with chilly powder. They also applied electric shocks to my penis and ears.”

Bashir has received severe torture mark on his buttocks; one of his testes has also been damaged. His both legs were broken. Though he was badly injured army never made him to visit any doctor or hospital. The torture was continued for the full month. After that his parents were allowed to meet him. On asking him the purpose behind the torture Bashir said, “I was involved with a militant outfit though army recovered my gun but they were demanding more arms and ammunition from me.”

One more thing that Bashir disclosed at Barahmulla (JIC) he narrated his ordeal to CBI as a result of which army transferred him to Rajasthan Jail where he spent 3 full years without any legal trial.      

CASE 02

Name: Mohammad Yousuf Sheikh

Residence: Sopore, Shababad 

Gender: Male

Age: 33 years 

Date of arrest: 1993(day and month not mentioned)

Place: Sopore

Agency involved: 17 Battalion Border Security Force (17 BSF) 

Mohammad Yousuf Sheikh was arrested in 1993 at Sopore. He spent his one full year in a detention center (name not mentioned) without undergoing any trail. While narrating his testimonial Sheikh said, “I was arrested by 17 Battalion of BSF. The concerned officer major Mehta tortured me brutally. Iron rollers were used. They stripped me naked and around 20 troops climbed over me. My mouth was plugged with my underwear; then they poured water into my nose till I became unconscious.”   

Beside that BSF personal burnt his armpits by using candles.  The burnt marks are still visible on his body. They gave him electric shocks and beat him ruthlessly with canes and belts.  On asking Sheikh the purpose of torture, Sheikh replied that he was involved in a militant outfit and they demanded arms and ammunition from me. 

No one was allowed to meet him except few members of his family. Sheikh said “Army personnel occasionally permitted them to visit me. Many times officials deliberately told them that he is not here. I was allowed only twice to meet them.” 

As a result of the torture Sheikh’s thighs possess no flesh. The burnt marks on his armpits are still visible. His legs were broken during torture and even now he is unable to walk properly. Even after treating him so brutally Indian army never took him to any hospital nor his injuries were shown to any doctor during his detention period. 

CASE 03

Name: Mushtaq Ahmad Wani 

Residence: Sopore RafiaBad, Duabgah 

Gender: Male

Age:  33 years 

Date of arrest: not mentioned 

Place: Duabgah 

Agency involved:  Army (unit not mentioned)

Mushtaq Ahmad Wani was arrested by Major Thomson of Army at Duabgah. Thomson took Mushtaq first to Watergham and later he was shifted to many detention centers. While narrating his torture tale Mushtaq said, “They beat me continuously for hours. They tied me upside down and beat me till I lost my consciousness.” Later his head was dipped again and again in a bucket full of water till he regained his consciousness. “They inserted petrol pipe in my anus. And the injuries which I received during torture were treated with salt and chilly powder.” 

Mushtaq was earlier involved with a militant outfit. However he surrendered before army. After one year he was arrested and army was demanding arms and ammunition from him. Mushtaq was detained nearly for 4 years. His family was not allowed to meet him in first eighteen months. “My family was told that I am dead when they demand my dead body they were allowed to visit me after eighteen months and nearly after forth year of my detention I met my family second time.”    

As a result of torture Mushtaq said, “I am not able to work properly or live a healthy life. There are more than 1000 visible torture marks on my body.”  Like rest of detainees Mushtaq was never taken to hospital nor was any medicine allotted to him.   

TEACHER THRASHED, MANY INJURED IN LATHICHARGE
February 9: Ten persons were injured when Army opened fire and resorted to lathi-charge to disperse a protest rally in north Kashmir’s Kupwara district.

 The trouble started in Wani Dorsa Lolab early morning when troops of 28 Rashtriya Rifles, carrying out a search operation, saw blood stains near the house of one Jehangir Ahmad Mir, headmaster Government Middle School Hyatpora Lolab. According to Mir’s family, the Army started thrashing the teacher asking him if the bloodstains were of some injured militant. 

 “After troops completed searches, they asked my husband to accompany them and took him to the house of one Jabar Mir. Fearing for his life, I remained with him despite warnings and abuses from Major Rahul of 29-RR,” Mir’s wife Tasleema told media.

The locals say the bloodstains were of some animal. “When Mir’s nephews, Mudasir and Javid, saw Army thrashing their uncle, they tried to save him. The troops shot at and injured Mudasir and severely thrashed Javid,” she added.

The Army also thrashed several civilians in the incident injuring at least seven of them, eyewitnesses said.   

 Mudasir and Javid were immediately shifted to Bone and Joints Hospital Srinagar while other injured were taken to Sogam hospital. 

 After the incident, people came on streets and protested against the Army. Raising slogans against the Army, the protesters disrupted traffic on Tekipora-Sogam road for several hours. 

 “28 RR should be immediately removed from our area. They have made our lives hell,” said Ashiq Hussain.

 Senior administration and police officials rushed to the spot to pacify the protestors. 

 “We are waiting for the medical report of the injured and accordingly action under rules will be taken,” Additional SP Kupwara Ijaz Ahmad told media.

Meanwhile, the PRO Defence, Col A K Mathur, said that Army had information about the presence of militants in the area. 

 “When our search party entered a house, the owner and his relatives resisted and didn’t allow the troops to search. The house owner pushed an Army officer and in the scuffle the rifle of a trooper went off. But nobody was injured due to bullet,” he said.

The PRO said only one person sustained minor injury in the incident. 

SOG, ARMY FORCING ME TO WITHDRAW CASE: SON OF MURDERED FATHER
February 9: A man whose father was murdered in a fake gunfight by the dreaded Special Operations Group of Police and army soldiers said on February 9 that police was pressuring him to withdraw the case filed by him in the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC). 

Tariq Mehmood, whose father Kala Khan was murdered in a fake gunfight in 2002 by SOG and army, told media over phone, “Police picked me up on February 1 and threatened me with dire consequences if I don’t withdraw the case.” 

Hailing from Lasara village of Surnkote Poonch, Mehmood said, “I filed the case with SHRC with a hope that the human rights body would punish the guilty. But after several of hearings nothing concrete has emerged which would look justice to me. The SHRC is only offering compensation. 

 
I don’t want any compensation. I want punishment to all those persons who murdered my father. 

” According to Mehmood on February 12, 2002, Kala Khan, a mason, went to work in a nearby village. “When my father was returning  home he was stopped and picked up by the SOG and soldiers of 40 Rashtriya Rifles. And next day at 3:30 PM the troops and the SOG personnel raided our house. A masked man wearing army uniforms was with them. The troops told us the masked man was a militant and they had come to search our house. In the meanwhile they let the masked man go and ordered my uncle to follow him. But when my uncle and the masked man walked some distance, the troops and the SOG personnel shot at him and he fell on the spot. Then they took his dead body to police station. We learnt from the people in Malar village that the militant killed by troops in our house was not a militant but our father. We went to the police station asking for father’s body, but policemen told us ‘we have killed the militant not Kala Khan’. We were shocked,” Mehmood said. 

Later the family had approached the then deputy commissioner Poonch Ejaz Iqbal on March 2, 2002 who ordered exhumation of the body in the presence of Naib Tehsildar. 

 “We recognised the father’s body,” said Mehmood. He said the then senior superintendent of police wrote to the additional district magistrate that “investigation was conducted in the incident and it was established that on the day of occurrence army troops were attacked at Lasana which was retaliated and in the ensuing encounter Kala Khan son of Feroz Khan was killed and huge quantity of arms were recovered from him. It was further established that Kala Khan was known notorious guide of militants and used to lead the militants to attack security forces and common masses.” 

Surprised over the police claim the family had approached the SHRC. “I wouldn’t give up fight to see the killers of my father punished,” Mehmood said.

The Station House Officer of Surankote said they have neither detained nor harassed Mehmood. “If he approaches me I will look into his complaint,” the SHO said.

SON IN JAIL WITH CANCER, MOTHER ATTEMPTS SUICIDE    
February 27: When she heard her detained son was suffering from cancer, she sprinkled kerosene on her clothes. But for her brother, the live matchstick in her hands would have reduced her to ashes.

“Oh God! This disease has recently snatched my husband. Please spare my son.”  The supplication made the eyes of the small crowd wet.  Her brother brought some solace by promising to visit her ailing son in Jammu’s Kotbalwal jail.

Sixty-year-old Zainab lived in extreme poverty with her family at Shah Mohalla, Alisteng, on the outskirts of Srinagar. She had no regrets.  Her son Muhammad Yaqoob Sheikh was known for carving out beautiful designs on copper utensils. Whatever he earned through his artistic designs was enough to buy the family food and medicines for his ailing father Abdul Ahad Sheikh. 

Narrating her woeful tale, Zainab said: “On Ashoora day in 2006, a neighbour, Manzoor Ahmad came to our place and requested my son to accompany him to the hospital where his wife was undergoing treatment. Yaqoob refused but his ailing father urged him to go. I had prepared saag (a Kashmiri vegetable), which I gave to them. Manzoor received a call on his cell in the wee hours next morning. He took Yaqoub with him but the police intercepted them near Zakura crossing. Yaqoob and another youth Feroz were taken into custody. I saw my son after six months when he was produced in the court.”

Yaqoob was booked under section 3/25 Indian arms Act in FIR NO 56/06 of police station Zakura. According to the police, Yaqoob was arrested when some policemen and soldiers of CRPF 42 BN found him roaming in Angerpora area on June 30, 2006.   “He is a militant of Lashker-e-Toiba. A rifle grenade and five live cartridges were recovered from his possession,” says the charge sheet.

Zainab strongly denies the allegations. “My son had nothing to do with militancy. He was the lone bread earner of the family. How could he get involved in militancy?”

The court ordered his release on bail in June 2007 but all in vein. Yaqoob was detained under public safety act (PSA) in September 2007 and sent to Kotbalwal jail, Jammu.

Zainab has no money to undertake journey to Jammu. “I used to meet my son in the court. But since October (2007) he has not been produced for unknown reasons,” she said.

Zainab’s brother, Ali Muhammad Khan, who works as a labourer went to Jammu two months ago. “A depressed Yaqoob told me about his ailment. He also showed me his leg from where a sample had been taken for some test,” he told to news agency.

Zainab is a heart patient and knows her end is fast approaching. “I want my son to lower me in the grave. Before I die, I want to entrust the custody of my daughter and his niece to him,” she said.

Recently, a person known to the family approached her. “I have talked to a senior police officer. He will release your son if we pay him one lakh rupees,” he disclosed. 
ZAHIDA’S ANXIOUS WALK TO FREEDOM

‘I WAS ACCUSED OF ASSISTING FIDAYEEN ATTACK ON CONG RALLY; I CAME TO KNOW ABOUT CHARGES IN COURT ROOM’
February 27: When the District and Sessions Judge Srinagar ordered release of a detainee, Zahida, in an open court on Feb 27, her daughters and other family members were on tenterhooks. They apprehended she would be arrested again, and their fears were not unfounded. In the past police has arrested thousands of political prisoners soon after their release outside the court, to be imprisoned again for some other charges. Zahida’s lawyer Muhammad Abdullah Pandit was more aware than anyone else about the whole game. He asked a policewoman to unlock Zahida’s cuffs. She obeyed. He asked Zahida to come along, warning people to stay away and not to follow him. Zahida’s family, policemen in uniform and civvies, lawyers and journalists, watched. 

Zahida had been taken away, this time not by the security agencies, but by her lawyer. In the past 20 years it was one of the few instances when a detainee, about to be re-arrested, walked to his or her freedom outside the court. 

“The lawyer has taken her to a safe place,” said advocate Urfi, who assisted senior lawyers pleading Zahida’s case.

Zahida, 50, was brought to the court from central jail in the morning. “I was very reluctant to come. I thought the court would order my release and the personnel of CIK (Counter Insurgency Kashmir) would re-arrest me and take me to police station. I have kidney and heart ailment; I am dying; I don’t want to be taken to police station again,” Zahida told this correspondent when she was waiting for the court ruling.  

She said police arrested her in July 2006 from her home. “We had gone to attend a marriage ceremony. There we were told that police is looking for us,” she said. 

Police arrested the entire family upon reaching home. Her husband, two daughters, and son were released after some days but she was detained in police station Rambagh. 

“Then I was shifted to central jail Srinagar where I was asked to sign some papers, and I signed,” she said. She had signed the Preventive Detention Order passed by the district magistrate under the Public Safety Act, the infamous Act under which a person can be jailed for two years without a trial, often on flimsy grounds.

“In jail,” she said, “I was wondering why I have been jailed. During trial I came to know in the court room that I have been booked for Section 302, which means a murder charge,” she said. 

Her family moved to the High Court through senior counsel Mian Abdul Qayoom. The Court quashed the order. “I was released outside gate of center jail and arrested again minutes after the release,” she said. 

 She was then detained at Kothibagh for a month. 

The state then again booked her under the PSA charging her with assisting a suicide attack on Congress rally in Lal Chowk in 2006. The family again filed a plea in High Court, which quashed the detention order. She was released outside the central jail where CIK cops arrested her again. On June 23, she was booked under PSA. The High Court quashed the order but state slapped another detention order under PSA. The court quashed the order third time. 

 
Her lawyers sought her release on bail, which was granted by the court. She was asked to submit bail bonds, which she did. 

 Today the lawyers had suspended work citing human rights abuses by the state as the reason for strike. But the president of Bar Association Nazir Ahmad Ronga and Muhammad Abdullah Pandit attended her case. 

 “When the bail bonds have been attested by the Court, the High Court has ordered her detention, and the superintendent jail says she is not required in any other case, the Court has no option but to release her,” argued Ronga and Pandit. They argued that police officials or any government prosecutor has filed application for her continued detention. 

 The superintendent police central jail was present in person before the court during the hearing.

After the court ruling, Zahida was apprehensive. “If they will arrest me again, I will die this time. I can’t survive in police station,” said Zahida. “I am ill and I have not seen my younger son for past one year. He has developed fear psychosis and he didn’t come to meet me in the jail,” she said. 

Zahida’s detention has devastated the family. They sold their house and her daughters and her son gave up education. They are living in a rented house presently.

SOG UNLEASHING TERROR: AGLAR RESIDENTS
February 22: Residents of Aglar, Zainapora in south Kashmir accused Special Operation Group (SOG) of unleashing “a reign of terror” in the area.


Few days ago police claimed killing two Lashker-e-Toiba militants who according to them were hiding in the house of Muhammad Ismail Mantoo at Aglar.

The locals accused the SOG men from Litter camp of barging into their houses and beating them continuously for past three days.

Anwar Khan (name changed) told media over phone that police was expecting to recover some important documents from Mantoo’s gutted house but after killing the militants they recovered only two AK-47 rifles.

Bashir Ahmed (name changed), another local said, “The SOG men are beating us ruthlessly. They have been asking us to handover mobile phones, dairies and some papers which they believe the slain militants were carrying with them.”

He said that the day after the encounter, the SOG personnel lifted Mantoo and released him only after beating him ruthlessly.

Ahmed added that the SOG personnel were repeatedly asking villagers to present themselves (villagers) before the Station House Officer of Litter SOG camp.

“For the past three days we are presenting ourselves before the Station House Officer. The SOG personnel beat us everyday asking us to handover weapons, mobile phones, SIM cards and documents,” he said.

However, Senior Superintendent of Police Pulwama, Nitish Kumar denied all allegations and said that the allegations of the locals are false. “So far I have not received any such complaint,” Kumar said.

3 MORE KASHMIRIS ARRESTED FROM KARNATAKA

Bangalore, February 3: Three Kashmiris arrested by the police in Hubli and Davanagere last week are being grilled, three more persons from Kashmir were taken into custody in the fort town of Chitradurga late February 1, night. They were identified as Mohammed Junaid (23), Imtiaz Ahmed (20) and Razutuz (40). “When they were moving around in Chitradurga town ‘suspiciously’ the public informed the police who picked them up for interrogation,” reports said. 

Superintendent of Police, Laghuram clarified that “the three people were not arrested. They were taken only for questioning. It is yet to be ascertained whether they had any links with militants or with those nabbed by Davanagere and Hubli police.” 

The arrested told the police that they were here to raise funds for the welfare activities taken up by the madrasas in Jammu and Kashmir. 

Some telephone numbers in Kashmir provided by the trio are being verified and efforts are on to establish contacts with their counterparts in Jammu and Kashmir based on the details they had furnished so that veracity of their claims can be verified, the SP added.  

KERALA GIVES CLEAN CHIT TO KASHMIRI YOUTH 

New Delhi: Kerala home minister Kodiyeri Balakrishnan here on February 1 gave a clean chit to a Kashmiri youth Altaf Ahmed, who was arrested from a Kashmiri artifact shop in Idukki district on January 5 on charges of being member of the militant outfit Hizbul Mujahideen (HM). 

While media has been agog with stories of the militant outfit invading southern most state of Kerala, Balakrishnan also a senior CPI (M) leader, here said that his government had never charged Altaf for being a member of Hizbul Mujahideen. "I never said Altaf is a Hizbul Mujahideen terrorist," said the Kerala Home minister. Maintaining that the only charge against Altaf is giving false information while applying for the passport, the Minister elaborated that the information was not corroborated by the Jammu and Kashmir police. 

"When we verified this information from Kashmir, there were discrepancies. That is the only charge against him," he added. The minister, however, said the matter was in the court and the accused was free to seek bail. Altaf's relatives said he was working in Kerala for past eight years. 

 
His father Abdul Rahman Khan said authorities even did not allow them to visit him in jail. Over 300 Kashmiri businessmen mostly handicraft dealers have set up their shops near the picturesque Kovalam beech near the state capital Thiruvananthapuram.

KERALA HC FREES KASHMIRI YOUTH AFTER FINDING HIM INNOCENT
Srinagar, Feb 15: A court in south India state of Kerala has granted bail to Altaf Ahmed Khan, a Srinagar youth, who was arrested from Idukki district of Kerala last month on the charges of working for Hizbul Mujahideen militant outfit. 

Reports said Justice R Basant of the Kerala High Court granted bail to Altaf, 24, saying that “neither the central nor state governments could establish that Altaf still maintains connection with the militant groups.”

Altaf has been directed to furnish a bond of Rs three lakh plus two solvent sureties for a like amount. The court also said that Altaf should appear before Investigation Officers on Tuesdays and Fridays. The state, however, opposed the bail.

Altaf was languishing in the Central Jail Kerala since his arrest on January 5 on the charges of establishing a base for Hizbul Mujahideen in south India. The charges levelled against him were dismissed both by Jammu Kashmir police and the paramilitary BSF troops. The police and the BSF had arrested Altaf way back in 1998 and freed him, giving him a clean-chit. 

Altaf had migrated to Kerala in 1998 where he worked as a salesman at a Kashmiri handicrafts showroom. He returned home in Lal Bazaar, Srinagar in 2007 after more than nine years. 

Parents of Altaf had met Inspector General Police (Kashmir range) after the arrest of their son and showed him the documents and court orders proving Altaf’s innocence. The IGP probed the matter and sent the documents to his Kerala counterparts.

According to many Kashmiris earning a living in Kerala where many of them own handicraft stalls, Kerala police has had been harassing them allegedly on behest of Hindu extremist groups like the Bajrang Dal and RSS.

NATIONAL AWARDEE TELLS HOW KASHMIRIS ARE TREATED LIKE ANIMALS IN TIHAR
February 1: A Kashmiri young man who bagged National Award in 2003 for excellence in handicrafts is serving detention in Delhi’s Tihar Jail for the past one year. He has revealed how Kashmiris—most of them framed in false and fabricated cases—are treated worse than animals in Tihar jail, Asia’s biggest prison. Aijaz Hussein Khawaja, a resident of Gund Hasibat, Srinagar told a team of Kashmir High Court Bar Association how he was picked up from New Delhi where he had been putting up since 1976 and running shawl business. Aijaz had also purchased a flat in Jangpura Extension. 

He told the Bar team that he visited Srinagar in June 2006 and after staying in the Valley for some time he left for Delhi on July 4. “On August 8, 2007, Delhi Police raided my Jangpora residence ostensibly in search of a man named Liaqat who they said was serving as a DSP in Kashmir police. Delhi Police team searched the flat and took away Rs 52 lakh which I had brought from Srinagar after selling a piece of land at Hyderpora for investing in the business,” Aijaz said, adding that was taken along by the Delhi police and detained in a cell for two weeks. 

A report by the Bar Association quotes Aijaz as saying that Delhi Police wanted him to admit before a magistrate he had brought a polythene bag from Srinagar containing RDX, but he refused after which the cops beat him mercilessly. When he did not succumb to the pressure of Delhi police, Aijaz said his wife and children were brought to the detention cell. He was threatened if he doesn't accept the crime, which he never committed; his wife will be paraded naked in the cell before his eyes.

“During this time Aijaz was kept naked in front of his family,” the Bar report says. 

Following the threats, Aijaz said he agreed to admit the “crime.” Aijaz was then taken to a magistrate where he was asked to sign certain blank documents. His case is pending before the Tis Hazari court. The Bar Association team went to the Tihar on the directions of the High Court. The team comprised senior attorneys Mian Abdul Qayoom, Muhammad Ashraf Bhat and Bashir Sidiq.

 
The team met 21 Kashmiri detainees in the Tihar Jail who accused the jail authorities of subjecting them to inhuman treatment and restricting them from performing religious obligations. 

The detainees also accused the jail authorities of forcing them to attend Hindu rituals like bhajans, vipasana, etc. 

KASHMIRI WOMAN MET JAILED HUSBAND AFTER 10 YEARS
 February 28:Molvi Mehmood Kasana, the imam from Kangan, is languishing in the Tihar for the past 11 years. In a letter to his wife two years ago, Fatima Bano, had described in length the harsh treatment meted out to Kashmiri prisoners in the infamous Tihar jail.

“We published the letter in leading newspapers of the Valley and it was only through this letter that the atrocities committed on the Kashmiri prisoners at the Tihar and other prisons of India came to fore,” Fatima told reporters on Feb 28 during a one-day sit-in protest organized by the Committee for Release of Political Prisoners. The committee is headed by Professor Syed Abdur Rahman Geelani, a teacher in the Delhi University 

Ever since she received the letter from her husband, Fatima said she has become cynical about the safety of her husband who was arrested by the paramilitary BSF troops on November 20, 1996 from Kangan.

Kasana was the imam of a mosque at Bohri Kadal before his arrest. “In the letter my husband explained that he is suffering from acute back ache after he was repeatedly tortured for many years. Now he cannot offer nimaz. Even if he tries to make an attempt, he needs the assistance of at least two-fellow prisoners,” said Fatima who was accompanied by her youngest daughter Iram, who has seen her father only in photographs.

Fatima added: “In the letter my husband has mentioned that the jail authorities put restrictions on the Kashmiri detainees to perform the religious obligations and those who are tortured are not given a proper medical treatment saying that all Kashmiris all militants.”

Fatima said that her husband became a victim of domestic animosity over a land dispute with his stepbrothers.

“He was not even remotely involved in militancy and was falsely booked after his step brothers hatched a conspiracy with the BSF troops who arrested him while he was travelling in a bus from Kangan,” she said. “However, they failed to recover any explosives from his possession and some passengers informed us that the only thing recovered from him was a set of Hadith books and a small bag of cereals.”

“For five days he was kept at BSF headquarters after which he was shifted to Sharifabad camp where he was kept for 22 days. However, when we visited the camp we were informed that he has been shifted to the Tihar jail,” said Fatima.

After making several attempts it was only in 2006 that Fatima got a chance to meet her husband after a gap of 10 years.  “After 10 years I was finally allowed to meet my husband. However, my father died without seeing his son-in-law,” said Fatima.

After her father’s death, Fatima said she has been living in a rented room at Bohri Kadal along with her four young daughters. 

Fatima was joined by at least 30 families in Feb 28 protests. Shafiqa Wani of Maisuma told media. “The medicines and letters which we sent to our son never reached him and the only time we saw him was in July 2007 when he was brought here from Kathua jail.”

Shafiqa said her son Tariq Ahmed Wani suffered multiple fractures in his leg after he was interrogated in the Kathua jail. “When he was brought to Srinagar Court from Jammu he was limping and his leg was broken. He was brutally tortured and when we spoke to him he said he was not been given medicines sent by his family,” Shafiqa said. 

According to the court orders, Tariq was supposed to be presented before the sadder court on February 18 but the family members allege the jail authorities are not presenting him in the court for hearing, which has deteriorated his condition further.

“We do not refuse his involvement in militancy but that does not mean that he should be tortured brutally. The denial of the jail authorities to present him in the court is an open violation of the court orders,” Shafiqa added. 

Expressing solidarity with the family members, senior leader of Jammu and Kashmir Liberation Front (JKLF) and a member of the Committee for Release of Political Prisoners Noor Mohammad Kalwal told media that “our demand is that all political prisoners should be released and those who are kept in detention without facing trials should be produced in the courts.”

The sit-in-protest was organized simultaneously in several states of India including Kerala, Bihar, Madhya Pradesh, Uttar Pradesh, Jharkhand, Karnataka and Delhi.

In Delhi, the protest was headed by convenor of the committee Professor SAR Geelani, a resident of north Kashmir’s Baramulla district who teaches Arabic in Delhi University. Geelani was arrested and framed in the Parliament attack case. A court later acquitted him of all charges.

The association claims that around 10,000 Kashmiris are currently imprisoned in various jails in and outside Kashmir—"most of them in inhuman conditions.” 

THAKERAY’S MEN TARGET KASHMIRIS
February 13: The harassment of non-locals in Maharashtra by the Maharashtra Nawnirman Sena (MNS) “goons” has escalated to the Kashmiri students and traders presently engaged in education and business in India’s southern state. Hundreds of Kashmiris in Pune have been asked to leave the city and return home while Kashmiri students have been subjected to stone pelting and harassment in several other areas. As a result, panic has gripped the Kashmiri community in various areas of the state. They have even accused the local police of inaction. 

Several students of Pune’s BET college told media on phone that Raj Thakeray’s MNS activists had served an ultimatum to Kashmiri students asking them to return home or else they would be dealt with on the same pattern as those from UP and Bihar were being dealt. 

Sahil Ahmad, a MBA student, said Kashmiri students were not being allowed to venture out of their quarters for several days past. He said hundreds of Kashmiri students and traders staying in Pune at present were being harassed these days. 

 Another student, Shabbir Ahmad, said around 40 Kashmiri students had been forced to stay put at their places and could not visit the local market to buy essential commodities. The MNS zealots stoned their quarters for several days past. 

 
The Kashmiri traders engaged in various businesses in the state are reported to have suspended their work and have closed down their shops as a precautionary measure. 

When contacted, the Mumbai-based J&K Resident Commissioner, Javed Amin, told media he had not received any reports about Kashmiris being harassed in Maharashtra but he did not rule out any such incidents. 

He said he was collecting information from various areas and, in the event of the reports being substantiated; the matter would be taken up with the Maharashtra government. He said all necessary steps would be taken to ensure safety of Kashmiris in the state.

ARREST OR SURRENDER DRAMA? ARMY, POLICE AT LOGGERHEAD

POLICE WANTS TO DRAW HIDDEN BENEFITS: ARMY; ARMY DOESN'T KNOW ACTUAL SITUATION: SSP
February 2: Police claim of surrender by two militants in Pulwama district has put it at loggerheads with the Army who maintains that the duo was arrested during a raid. Police says the two militants—Gulzar Ahmad Mir alias Nik Mir son of Muhammad Ramzan Mir of Choudhary Bagh Zainapora and Showkat Ahmed Rather alias Mustafa son of Muhammad Abdullah of Grawgund Pulwama—surrendered before it after a brief encounter at Wachi, Pulwama on Feb 2.

“Pulwama police, after specific information about the presence of militants at Wachi launched a joint operation along with Srinagar Police and 55-Rashtriya Riffles,” SSP Pulwama Nitish Kumar told media. “As the police reached the target area, militants opened indiscriminate fire on them, triggering off an encounter,” he added. 

“After a brief exchange of fire, militants were asked to surrender and they accepted it by laying down their arms before us,” Kumar added. 

Army, however, gives an altogether different version, terming the police claim as a “drama to draw out some hidden benefits.”

“The militants were simply apprehended by 55-RR along with two AK-56 Rifles, four magazines and one grenade from the house of Nissar Ahmed Bhatt. They were later handed over to police. There was no fire, no encounter. You can confirm it from the villagers,” Army spokesman Lt Col A K Mathur told media. “The police wants to draw some hidden benefits from this enact,” he added. 

Col Mathur’s comment irked the police. “Army spokesman is issuing statement from Srinagar, not from the actual ground situation,” Kumar, the SSP said.  

HANDWARA VILLAGE UNDER SIEGE AGAIN, VILLAGERS DISPLACED
Srinagar, February 18: Army and SOG laid a siege around Mangwalpora-Handwara again today. Subsequently, the local people migrated from there. 

Feb 17, the people from the neighboring villages had forced the security forces and SOG to lift the siege after fifth day when they marched into the affected village. 

Police and army on Feb 18 reiterated that the village is under surveillance. 

During the wee hours of Feb 18 army and SOG laid a siege of Mangwalpora. As the search operation began, an announcement was made on loudspeaker of local mosque by the elderly people asking the people to assemble at a particular place and then move out of the village. The village was searched by the troops and SOG with the help of the sniffer dogs. The first house that was searched with the help of sniffer dogs belongs to additional deputy commissioner Kupwara (ADC) Bashir Ahmad Wani, police sources said. 

Many houses were ransacked today; police sources added and identified the houses owners as Congress block president Ghulam Rasool Wani, Muhammad Amin Wani and Maqbool Wani. 

After assembling at a place, the people shifted to other villages including Kralgund and Hampora. Reports said that the troops did not stop the people from moving out. The villagers were allowed to move out after the identity cards were checked. 

The displaced villagers told the media on phone that continuous siege had made their lives miserable. Not only threat to their lives, but the other problems like shortage of food items was creating problems for them. They alleged that the operation was causing physical and mental stress to them. 

Both army and SOG are refuting the charges that Mangwalpora is under siege but they claim that the village is under surveillance. Sector commander 7 Sector Rashtriya Rifles, Brigadier I Narayana, told media that the village is under surveillance and not under siege and army is sure militants are inside. "The militants are inside the village and to check the movement of the militants, we have to keep the vigil," he said and added that there is no restriction on the movement of the people, "If the people left the village, we did not stop them. It is their choice," adding "We did not want any collateral damage." Defending what he called the surveillance, I Murthy said, I assure people of no harm at all- at any cost." The army officer categorically said, "Till we will not complete our task, we will not end surveillance."

EIGHT-DAY LONG MILITARY SIEGE LIFTED IN MANGWALPORA
Mangwalpora (Handwara), February 20: Mangwalpora has been named as a Model Village by the government. It witnessed one of the longest military sieges in the past 18 years of political struggle. The eight-day siege ended on Feb 20 morning. People are recovering from the psychological trauma induced by the siege, which they say was a tactic used by the soldiers and police to “break our will so that we would give false information about militants.” 

“But we are proud that we didn’t give up, and defeated their nefarious intentions,” said Bashir Ahmad. The soldiers dug out the floors of rooms in his house. 

 
The soldiers of 30th battalion of Rastriya Rifles and personnel of Special Operation Group (SOG) also dug the houses of several other people in search of “ammunition and hideouts.”

The search operation in Mangwalpora, having a population of 350 people, was the longest in Kupwara and one of the longest in the Valley.

According to the Bashir, the search operation was “collective punishment and mental torture” by the troops of RR and Special Operation Group of Police. 

“They thought we would name or blame somebody. But we stand by our unity, besides this is a peaceful village,” Bashir said.

On Feb 19, the people rejected the eatables brought and offered by the army.

Muhammad Shafi, another resident said, “My house was searched more than 30 times by the troops. In fact there is not a single house, which wasn’t searched by troops less than 20 times. But they found nothing. That shows they wanted to harass us.” 

He said the troops even snapped the electricity supply to the village on the first day of siege. “They took electric bulbs from the verandahs of our houses and electric poles; it was dark everywhere. We were even deprived of water during the first two days of operation and we used snow,” Shafi added.  

Ghulam Muhammad, a resident, said the army choppers made several sorties “quite close to the ground to create fear among people especially the children and women.”

Locals alleged they were detained in two houses during the first three days of the siege. “Men and women were kept in separate houses. We have never witnessed such harassment by troopers. Even an expecting mother was not allowed to be taken to hospital in time. Even after a caesarian, the baby couldn’t survive,” said Muhammad Maqbool Wani.

The troopers had allegedly restricted the villagers from offering prayers in the mosque during the siege. 

“We were not allowed to call the prayers (Azaan) in the mosque during these eight days and even not allowed to offer the Feb 15 (Friday) prayers,” Wani added. Two kilometers away from the town, the troops, along with sniffer dogs, were still encircling the town, and frisking everybody who comes out of the village. 

Many villagers fear the reprisals by army and SOG. 

DURING ENCOUNTER 7 YOUTHS USED AS HUMAN SHIELD BY ARMY, POLICE: RESIDENTS
February 29: Four militants were killed in an overnight gunfight with police and soldiers in Saidapora area of Shopian, police said. The local residents accused the combatant forces of using the youth as human shields during the gunfight.

According to police the troops of 44 Rashtriya Rifles and Special Operations Group of police cordoned off the area on Feb 28 evening after receiving information about the present of militants. Villagers alleged that after they were evacuated following the cordon, the troopers did not allow them to leave the village instead kept them in a cowshed. 

"This village has a population of 20 persons. The troops kept all of us with cattle in a cowshed whole night and locked us," said Rafiqa daughter of Muhammad Shaban Sheikh.  Eyewitness said that seven youth from adjoining villages were used as human shields by the troops during the course of the gun battle. 

"They took the identity cards of the youth and used them as human shields," a villager wishing not to be named for the fear of reprisal told news agency.  "The troops forced the youth to carry ammunition towards the encounter site and later used them as shield."  

Eyewitnesses said soon after the troops were leaving the encounter site, the youth were made to carry the ammunition and generator set to the army vehicles kept at a distance.

"The troopers were beating the youth with bamboo sticks while they were made to carry the cache of ammunition and diesel generator towards their vehicles," said another villager.   

"It looked as if mules were chased away by their owners," he said.

The eyewitness said that one of the youth, Gulzar Ahmad, who had returned from Jammu on Feb 28 was beaten so much that he was rushed to a hospital. 

Muhammad Shaban Sheikh, an abjectly poor man lost his hard-earned abode during the 12-hour gun battle between the militants and the troops. 

"Gunmen were not invited by me. When someone carrying gun asks for shelter how can one turn him away?” he asked.

The police and troops zeroed in on the house of Muhammad Shaban Sheikh Son of Abdul Gafoor Sheikh, police said, adding, “The search party who tried to enter the house came under heavy gunfire from the militants holed up inside the house triggering a fierce encounter in which three militants of Hizbul Mujahideen and a militant of Al-badr outfit were killed.”

The dead militants of Hizb outfit are Riyaz Ahmed Thokar alias Abu Jihad of Chak Cholan, Shopian; Siyar Ahmed Thokar of Chak Cholan, Shopian; and Muhammad Iqbal Waghay son of Abdul Rahim son of Abdul Rahim Waghay of Udoor Kulgam.

Police named Siyar Ahmad Bhat of Kilbal as the militant of Al-Badr outfit.

The local residents demonstrated against the troops and police on Feb 28 & 29 accusing them of using seven men including three brothers as human shield during the gunfight. They are the brothers Aftab Ahmad, Parvez Ahmad, and Shakeel Ahmad, sons of Abdul Ahad; Tufail Ahmad Bodha son of Abdul Majid, Nisar Ahmad Khan son of Ghulam Muhammad, Shiraz Ahmad Bhat son of Ghulam Hassan, and Gulzar Ahmad Gatoo son of Abdul Rashid. 

The soldiers of 44 RR had picked up these men from Bongam, Shopian and took them close to the house where the militants were hiding. After protests by the local residents they were released. 

 Reports further said the house was completely damaged during the gunfight.

According to a news agency, Siyar Ahmad Thokur had joined the outfit on February 25, 2008.

BANDIPORA YOUTH WORKING AS BONDED LABOURERS FOR ARMY
February 11: Residents of many hamlets in this north Kashmir district accused Army of taking youth as hostage and making them work as bonded labourers.     

Residents of Dardpora, Bhutto, Panar, Veewan, Ketsan and other remote areas told media, “Troops are compelling us to transport their belongings including deadly ammunition from plains to high altitudes. 

 
They also force us to remove the snow from the roads leading to their posts in upper reaches.” Bilal Ahmad Khan of Dardpora said that he and other youth of the village were taken as hostage by the troopers and compelled to clear the 15 feet snow from the roads.  

“Not a single penny was paid to us by the army for this arduous job,” he said.

Another youth of the village Abdur Rashid Khan said, “Army is forcing hundreds of youth to work as laborers for them. They don’t pay us a single penny and also threaten us of dire consequences if we don’t work for them.”

“No one listens to us. They can do anything with human lives up to any extent, if we refuse to abide their diktat,” said Khan. The parents of these youth are worried about the safety of their wards. 

 
“The army forces our children to carry load on deadly avalanche prone tracks. When they are taken from homes, we have no hope of their return,” said Sara Begum.

Commanding Officer 14 RR Col Wadira termed the allegations as baseless.

“This is done to malign the image of Indian army,” he said.

LOLAB GUJJARS AT RECEIVING END OF IKHWANI TERROR
 February 18: Deputy commissioner Bandipora is yet to respond to a letter from deputy commissioner Kupwara, in which the former was asked to shift the "Ikhwanis", who have been allegedly harassing 30 Gujjar families in Lolab. These ikwanis have occupied the "Bahks" of Gujjars and are participating in counter insurgency operations with security forces. 

"No, I have not got any answer from DC Bandipora," deputy commissioner Kupwara told media, adding "I will remind him again". 

Deputy Commissioner Kupwara wrote a letter to his Bandipora counter part to shift the Ikhwanis who have forcefully occupied "Kothas" of Gujjars of Devar-Lolab. The letter mentions that "Kothas" have been registered with Gujjars for last 30 years according to revenue records. 

The letter vide number DCK/PS/07: dated 28-06-2007 is titled: "Occupation of "Kothas" belonging to Gujjars of Lolab-Kupwara by some Ikhwanis at Nagmarg-Bandipore." 

The letter says, "These Gujjars of Devar Lolab have revenue records for grazing of cattle in the "Bhaks" and these too are registered in the revenue records. The Gujjars approached this office and you are requested to take necessary action for vacation of these "Kothas" from the clutches of these "Ikhwanis." 

Copy of the letter has also been sent to deputy inspector general of police Baramulla for information. 

The Gujjars told media that these "Ikhwanis", numbering 15 to 20 do not allow them to move in the areas of "Bhaks" and that they have rendered them without a livelihood. "I have to feed a 10 member family on this and for the last four years they have occupied our Kothas," they said. According to the Gujjars they have approached the authorities several times in Bandipora and Baramulla, but they have shown helplessness. "They told us we can not help you and do not want to take cudgels with the "Ikhwanis" the Gujjars said. 

These Gujjars fear reprisal from these "Ikhwanis" "They are warning us of dire consequences, as we have approached the authorities," the Gujjars told media. 

These Gujjars used to graze the animals in Bahaks located in these dense forests. For this, they have the permission from the revenue department.

3 ARRESTED FOR RDX RECOVERY DRAMA
'CRPF MAN STAGED MANAGED IT': POLICE

 February 24: Police claimed to have arrested three persons for "stage-managing" the recovery of deadly RDX in Bhaderwah district ahead of UPA chairperson Sonia Gandhi's visit on February 22.

They have been identified as Yasir Arafat son of Mohammad Safi, a resident of Mohalla Thara, Basharat Hussain son of Zahoor Goni, a resident of Chenote and Sadiq son of Gula Ram of Kursari village in Bhaderwah district. 

During the investigation, the arrested persons revealed that they had received the cache of ammunition from the constable of 113 Battalion of Central Reserve Police Force Farooq Ahmed. They further disclosed that the constable had hatched the entire conspiracy, which led to cancellation of UPA chairperson Sonia Gandhi's visit there on Feb 23. 

According to a report, neither the state police nor any other central security agency confirmed the operation for recovery of the arms and explosive material, including three kilograms of RDX, two Chinese grenades, a grenade launcher, two detonators, seven rounds of AK-47, four rounds of Pika Gun, one wireless set and a mobile phone charger. 

However, the sources disclosed that the CRPF team in civil dress had descended on an abandoned house in Teligarh area of Chinnot village and allegedly placed all the ammunition and the explosive powder there. 

Sources further maintained that the inquiry team recorded the statement of the grocery shop owner who had supplied food including a chicken preparation to the CRPF team, which had stationed itself a day prior to the visit of Gandhi and Patil. 

Reports said that the Commanding Officer of the CRPF battalion in the area had called the local police station at around 7.30 pm on Feb 22 and sought three personnel for a routine patrol. The three personnel from the Jammu and Kashmir Police reached the CO's, office where they were made to sit for the next three hours without any work. 

The Commanding Officer, who had returned from Jammu on the very same day, later asked the local police to accompany his team to Teligarh. 

On its way back, the advance party of the CRPF, which was allegedly stationed in the abandoned house, met midway and narrated the story of the recovery of weapons and RDX. 

The inquiry team questioned the CRPF personnel about the claim that the purported militants of Lashkar-e-Toiba had run away on spotting the CRPF team, reports added. It may be mentioned here that the state Home Department had summoned the CRPF Inspector General J C Dabas on Feb 23, and pulled him up for the alleged major goof up. He had promised an enquiry and had deputed a deputy inspector general to conduct it. 

Efforts to get a reaction from CRPF did not succeed, as none of the officers contacted was ready to speak on the issue. 

In the meantime, the Home Department had authorized the local police to file cases against the CRPF personnel to ascertain where arms and ammunition had come from, to show the alleged recovery. 

The recovery had forced cancellation of the Gandhi's rally. Patil, state Chief Minister Ghulam Nabi Azad and senior officials from the state government and the Center, accompanied her. 

Talking to the media, Deputy Inspector General of CRPF Parlhad Singh refuted the involvement of CRPF jawan in the whole episode and maintained that local police is changing its statement in this connection. However, he refused to comment on the issue and said that official statement will be made after the completion of enquiry by the local police. 

On Feb 23, the deputy inspector general of police Doda Range has ordered an inquiry to probe the claim.

“A fact-finding inquiry has been ordered and if some discrepancies are found, we will seek an explanation from the security forces that recovered explosives from the site just short of 700 m from the venue, where Ms Gandhi had to interact with the people,” senior Superintendent of Police (SSP) Doda Manohar Singh told UNI.

On Feb 26, the DIG Doda Range Farooq Khan has ordered a probe into the matter under the supervision of the Doda SSP.

According to the sources CRPF is using some youth in the area with criminal background as informers and asking them to feign as militants. 

“They indulge in criminal activities like extortion, arson and blackmailing shopkeepers and poor villagers. Number of cases stand registered against them in different police stations.”

SOME PEOPLE TRIED TO SCUTTLE CHATTISINGHPORA INVESTIGATION
February 17: Former Chief Minster and National Conference (NC) patron Farooq Abdulla disclosed “some people tried to scuttle Chattisingpora massacre when he was the CM of the state.” 


He made this revelation during his address at an annual convention of the Kashmir Sikh Sangat (KSS) in Jammu.

“There were some people who tried to scuttle the investigations. Some investigators were even threatened. I want to reveal the conspiracy behind the massacre, but as I am under oath, I cannot do so”, said Farooq.

The Chattisingpora massacre coincided with the then US President Bill Clinton’s visit to India on March 20, 2000. The day Clinton arrived in New Delhi, 35 Sikhs were shot dead at Chattisingpora in South Kashmir.


Appreciating the role of the Sikh community in Kashmir, Farooq said:” Even at the peak of the militancy, the Sikh community remained in Kashmir and withstood all the pressures during the worst times.”


He said they (the Sikh community) have been the flag bearers of India in Kashmir and have made a lot of contribution.


Earlier, Sikh leaders, including the Sangat president Dr Sant Singh Azad raised the issues being confronted by the Sikh community in the state.


They stressed that despite turmoil in the state, they stood in the valley like a rock.” However, the incidents like the Chattisingpora massacre and its aftermath had shattered their confidence, they said.


Other demands put up by the Sangat leaders include 10 percent reservation for Sikhs in employment and professional institutions; streamlining of the issuance of the permanent resident certificate to the Sikh community in the valley; full implementation of Punjab language in the schools across the state; and nomination of one member of the Sikh community from the valley in either of the two Houses of the State Legislature. 

DOODIPORA KILLINGS: 

TWO YEARS ON POLICE WAITS INQUIRY COMMISSION REPORT TO FILE CHARGESHEET

ENQUIRY OFFICER RETIRES
February 22: Police is waiting for the inquiry commission report for filing the charge sheet in Chak Doodipora- Handwara killings by 33 Rashtriya Rifles on Feb 22 in 2006. Four boys aged between 8 and 18 were allegedly mowed down by RR when they were playing cricket. 

Officials maintained that the inquiry report is incomplete due to the non -cooperation of army and has absolved its soldiers in their court of inquiry. Army had held militants responsible for the shootout, a charge denied by local residents and eyewitnesses. 

The killing triggered massive and violent protests across the Valley for four consecutive days, prompting the state government to order a judicial probe vide order No. 3185-LD (A) of 2006 and register a case against the army. The inquiry officer was asked to identify the persons responsible for firing and submit his report within two months. The inquiry was held by Tariq Naqasbandi, principal and sessions judge Srinagar.

On November 25, 2006 the inquiry officer after recording the statements of 21 people of the village, observed there was prima facie evidence suggesting the involvement of a 33 RR Captain and his associates from the Doodipora camp in the shootout. The officer asked the defendants to appear either in person or through their lawyer to explain their conduct. He also directed the Army to furnish nominal rolls giving full details of the soldiers blamed for the incident. 

Sources said the inquiry report was pending as the Army hadn't provided the nominal rolls. Army had written to the inquiry officer saying that it held a court of inquiry into the incident, which absolved the soldiers of the charges. But the details were neither presented to the state government nor to the inquiry officer despite his repeated communication to the Army in this regard, sources added. 

Army has concluded its court of inquiry into the Doodipora firing incident, giving a clean-chit to soldiers of Rashtriya Rifles who had been charged with gunning down four boys in north Kashmir hamlet. 

The Army's court of inquiry came to the conclusion that "there was no negligence or any complicity on the part of soldiers," sources told media. The report has not been however furnished to the inquiry officer appointed by the state government to probe the incident that sparked anger and fury across the Valley two-and-a-half year ago. 

However, a defence spokesman said, "Army has a separate legal wing, and once the court of inquiry is ordered, Army efficiently conducts the same." He said on completion of the inquiry, Army sends the report to defence ministry for decision. Same would have been done in Doodipoa court of inquiry." 

Superintendent of police Handwara Dr Haseeb Mughal told media that police is not in a position to file a charge sheet into the case as it has not received any report from inquiry commission. "We can file the charge sheet into the killing after the report by inquiry commission," SP said. 

On Feb 28, the government has not taken any decision on the inquiry ordered into Doodhipora incident, even as the inquiry officer Syed Tariq Ahmad Naqashbandi is retiring from services on Feb 29. 

The probe is still on and the inquiry officer is yet to submit the report to the state government. Reports say army is not disclosing the identity of its troopers who were involved in the massacre thereby hindering the process of investigation. Whatever be the fate of Doodhipora probe, Naqashbandi will be remembered for his inquiry into the Wullar boat tragedy. Naqshbandi served in the High Court as assistant registrar in 1972. He also served as Principal Sessions and District Judge Budgam and Islamabad.

‘EVIDENCE OF PARIHAR’S CRIME SAVED’

February 22: The timely action by fire tenders and lawyers, saved the “material evidence of crimes committed by suspended Senior Superintendent of Police, Hansraj Parihar.”

Sources told media the clothes of the five civilians murdered by Parihar and his party in the fake encounters were saved when fire broke out in the court Maal Khana on February 15. Parihar, his deputy Ram Bahadur, and at least half-a-dozen cops belonging to the infamous Special Operations Group of police are in jail on the charges of butchering at least five civilians. The victims were eliminated in fake encounters in Ganderbal and Bandipore districts of north Kashmir in 2006-07 and then passed off as hardcore Pakistani militants.

STOP INHUMAN TREATMENT OF PRISONERS IN JAILS: RELATIVES
February 28: Relatives of political prisoners who have been jailed in different Indian jails for pro-freedom commitments held a sit-down protest at Press Enclave on Feb 28 against the Indian government, accusing it of treating the prisoners like animals. 

They demanded immediate release of the prisoners and urged international human rights bodies to intervene.


The relatives of prisoners told media their kin were ill treated in jails. “The condition of our children in jails is pathetic,” they said. 


The protesters, comprising women and children, held banners, reading “Respect Human Rights: Release All Political Prisoners.”


The protesters said the government of India and the state government were delaying the trials of the detainees, and they were not presented in courts in time. “The Kashmiri political prisoners are treated worse than animals in jails like Tihar, Kot Balwal, and Banaras, Jaipur, and other Indian jails,” they said.

OVER 3500 MILITANCY VICTIMS AWAIT JUSTICE UNDER SRO-43

GOVT PINS HOPES ON CENTRE

February 28: Notwithstanding several Confidence Building Measures (CBMs) initiated by the Centre and State Government for militancy victims, over 3500 people affected by two decades long Pakistan abetted violence are still awaiting relief in the form of compassionate appointments.

A family member of every person killed by the militants or a civilian who died during the cross firing is entitled to compassionate appointment under SRO-43 of the Government.

According to official sources, as many as 3688 cases of compassionate appointments under SRO-43 were pending with the Government. The time the Government can take to settle 3688 cases of militancy victims can be well gauged from the fact that only 826 militancy related compassionate appointments were made under SRO 43 during last three years, which revealed that, on an average, less than 300 cases were settled in a year.

If the same average of appointments continued, the present number of cases might take 12 years to settle. With no let up in civilian killings, the number of such appointments continues to grow.

One of the five Working Groups set up by Prime Minister Dr Manmohan Singh on Jammu and Kashmir had, in its report submitted to the Prime Minister last year, proposed that one lakh relief paid to kin of a militancy victims should be raised to Rs 5 lakh and SRO 43 appointments should be done away with in view of shortage of vacancies.

According to official figures, Kupwara district in Kashmir valley topped the number of pending compassionate appointments at 616 followed by Baramulla district, which has 435 pending cases.

Three hundred and ninety cases of appointments under SRO-43 are pending in Srinagar while the number of pending cases was 385 in Anantnag district.

In Jammu region, militancy infested Doda and Kishtwar districts topped the number of pending cases of compassionate appointments. While 269 such cases were pending in Doda, Kishtwar had 242 persons awaiting appointments under SRO-43.

In Budgam district, 234 such cases were pending while the number was 219 in Pulwama district.

In Leh and Kargil districts, which remained unaffected by the militancy, no such cases were pending. In Reasi district too, no such case was pending with the Government, according to the figures.

SRO-43 cases pending in other districts include Ganderbal (165), Shopian (83), Kulgam (161), Bandipora (129), Jammu (23), Samba (1), Kathua (3), Udhampur (28), Ramban (89) and Poonch (97).

According to sources, reasons for such a large number of pending cases were non-availability of Class-IV vacancies in the districts. The Government has formulated a policy in 2006 vide Order No. 42-GAD of 2006 dated 9.1.2006 under which 50 per cent of Class IV posts, available in the districts, were to be utilised for settlement of pending SRO 43 cases in chronological order maintained by the Deputy Commissioners.

The Government has identified 916 Class-IV vacancies for settlement of pending compassionate appointment. 

The State Government, according to official sources, has also taken up the issue of pending SRO-43 cases with the Central Government in the light of Working Group recommendations. The Government was hopeful that the Centre would come to rescue of the State, sources said.

GOVT. THUMBS NOSE AT SHRC RECOMMENDATIONS

February 18:  The state government has implemented just 353 out of 600 recommendations made by the JKSHRC since its inception in September 1997.


A Home Department communiqué sent to govt. vide no. Home / SHRC 221  / 2007 dated November 26, 2007, reads that 353 cases out of 600 have been implemented, 76 cases are to be implemented as there are ‘under process’. “171 cases are pending with the police department and CID on account of inquiry and are yet to be screened,” this communiqué reads further sources in home department maintain that most of recommendations made by SHRC are rejected by district level screening committees on the pretext that such recommendations do not fall under rules. In cases of Jammu province this reports states that 27 out of 42 recommendations have been implemented. 15 recommendations out of 42 cases are to be put before district level screening committee which a according to this report is under process. 

From its inception in September 1997 till February 28, 2007 total number of disposed off cases by the SHRC is 3647 the commission has recommended ex-gratia relief in 626 cases. From Feb 28 2007, the commission has received 495 cases and disposed off 332 during this period. The commission has received 578 cases of involuntary disappearances, 221 cases of custodial killings and 34 rape cases since its inception till December 31, 2007, the number of disposed of involuntary disappearance cases during this period is 283, custodial killing cases 61 and 10 rape cases were disposed off during the same period. 

The commission has not its own accommodation and it pays Rs. 50,000 / month for 12 room building at Buchwara, Dalgate, Srinagar. The construction which started 5 years ago is on its own building near Maulana Azad Road was stopped for unknown reasons.

The commission sans its investigations staff which includes one superintendent of police, two superintendent, one inspector, 5 head constables and 15 constables. This staff has been sanctioned only on October 23, 2007. The commission still relies on the police agencies for investigations of the complaints, which are mostly filed against them only.

Recently Inspector General of Police P.L. Gupta has joined the Commission in October 2007. Before him, Mohammad Shafi Wani was appointed in 1998 who remained for one and a half-year in service with the commission. Later there was no IGP in SHRC for a period of two years. After two years lull, SS Oberio was appointed who remained for next two years. He was later transferred.

It is pertinent to mention here that under section 11 (1) of the J&K Protection of Human Rights Act the commission is to have its independent investigation agency headed by IGP.

BATPORA RESIDENTS HOLD DEMO AGAINST LAND ACQUISITION

February 9: Scores of residents of Batpora Shopian on Feb 9 demonstrated against the state government, which, according to them, is acquiring their land for construction of a secretariat. 

The villagers assembled in the Press Enclave here this afternoon and shouted slogans against the government. 

 “If the state government snatches our land we will be left with no option but to beg for our livelihood,” said Muhammad Yousf. The protesters said more than 50 kanals of government land is lying idle at Gagrian. They said last year the Nodal Officer along with the then Divisional Commissioner visited the area and proposed to the government that building for the mini secretariat should be constructed on the government land. 

“But they want to disturb our peace by snatching our land,” said Ghulam Muhammad, a protester.

“I have eight kanals of orchards. I earn for enough for a whole year. Now the government is forcing me to sell the land. If the land goes how can I feed my family; I have three daughters,” said Muhammad Subhan Dar, 57.

The protesters accused the Deputy Commissioner Shopian of proposing their land to the government for construction of the building. The Deputy Commissioner Shopian Muhammad Ramzan Thokar said the available government land at Gagrian is not sufficient for establishing the mini secretariat. “We need more than 70 kanlas of land. Government will compensate the people for their land,” the DC said. 

VALLEY SITTING ON AMMUNITION VOLCANO

PEOPLE WORRIED, GOVT HELPLESS

February 24: The explosion in the Malkhana of lower courts in the city on Feb 23 has once again raised a question on the wisdom of having such facilities near populated areas. Although the incident generated serious concern, among both the legal fraternity as well as the local residents, who demanded its immediate shifting to a safer place, the government is yet to take a decision in the matter. 

The obvious complacence towards such incidents in the context of the devastating serial blasts at the army’s field ordnance depot at Khundroo in south Kashmir’s Islamabad district in 2007 points to the government’s lackadaisical disposition towards the protection of the lives and properties of the vulnerable people.  

 
Following the nasty incidents at Khundroo, the chief minister, Ghulam Nabi Azad, had called for relocating the Army’s ammunition depots from all the inhabited areas of the state, saying “this was necessary to prevent such accidents. 

As a result, no less than 16 precious human lives were lost and hundreds of cattle perished. 

 Azad had made the suggestion at a meeting with the defence secretary, Vijay Singh, who had visited the devastated area over the head of a high-level central team to assess the situation. The defence ministry had announced an “initial” assistance of Rs 100 million for the rehabilitation of the survivors.  

The chief minister had told the high-powered team about the concerns the people of the affected villages had  expressed about the possibility of a similar accident and the need to shift the ammunition depot even as “they were not against the presence of the army.”

In the wake of the recent blast in Malkhana of the lower court, people living near police stations and security camps, where large quantities of arms and ammunition are stored, have expressed deep anxiety about their safety. They are demanding shifting of all such arms depots. 

 
However, the divisional commissioner, Mehboob Iqbal, ruled out the possibility, at least in the near future, to shift the such depots or stores from the residential areas. “We can take precautions, but the decision to shift the ammunition depots can be taken only by the government of India,” he told news agencies  

Residents of Court Road too expressed concern about the government’s unconcern in the serious matter.  “The Government has not learnt its lessons from the Khundroo depot blasts. It is playing with our lives. Even if it is necessary to store ammunition in police stations and security camps, located in residential areas, a separate depot should be built outside the city outskirts for it,” said Muhammad Ayyub of Court Road.  

Equally worried is the legal fraternity who carry on their professional work in the court premises daily. Talking to news agencies the president of the High Court Bar Association, Nazir Ahmad Ronga, said the government had turned Kashmir into an ammunition depot. 

“The Valley is sitting on an ammunition volcano. The police and the security forces have dumped ammunition everywhere, including the court premises. The Tatoo Ground, 15 Corps and camps of CRPF are vulnerable to militant attacks which has made the inhabitants of adjoining localities extremely vulnerable,” Ronga said, adding that a major tragedy could have taken place had the more deadly RDX stored in the Malkhana caught fire. 

 
Last year in 2007, the Nowgam police station was damaged extensively after the arms and ammunition, including rockets stored there, caught fire. Similarly, the Safa Kadal police station was damaged after a grenade exploded in its building. 

“The police stations and security camps don’t have proper facility to store the arms and ammunition. Despite having foolproof mechanism to store arms, see what happened at Khundroo. The police or other security agencies under rules have to take permission from our department for storing ammunition. But they violate the rules and haphazardly dump the ammunition. This way they endanger lives and property of civilians,” said the divisional fire officer (DFO) of Fire and Emergency Services, Sajad Ahmad, said.   

 
“We have lost many men dousing fire in the ammunition depot like Khundroo. When blasts take place one after one, it is difficult to douse the fire. Authorities should seriously think of shifting the depots to safer places,” the DFO said. 

The deputy inspector general of police, Abdus Subhan Lone, said the ammunition kept in the police stations was well protected. “Our ammunition in police stations does not include grenades. When we recover any ammunition, we submit it to the courts. After the blast in the lower court, we have requested the court to allow us to destroy it,” he said.   

The CRPF PRO, PK Tripathi, said “foolproof mechanism has been put in place in our camps located in residential areas.” 

 
“After the Khundroo incident, we have taken steps to prevent any mishap in small ammunition depots of our camps in the Valley. Our troops have never lowered their guard. We have to understand, Khundroo was an accident,” the defence spokesman AK Mathur, said. However, he said the army has not received any request from the government to shift any ammunition depot.  

EXPLOSION IN LOWER COURT, 2 INJURED

IT IS DANGEROUS PLACE TO WORK: BAR PRESIDENT

February 22: Two persons were injured when a grenade inside the recovery room of the lower court Srinagar exploded.

The blast occurred in an ammunition store at the lower court located near the busy city centre. 

“The sound of a blast was heard from inside the godown this morning. Now, our men are trying to take out all the stuff lying inside the godown," said Afdul Mujtaba, Senior Superintendent of Police (SSP), Srinagar. 

No major fatalities were reported, as the place was fairly empty at the time of the blast with most of the lawyers having gone out for offering Feb 22 (Friday) prayers.

Fire fighters were called in to douse the fire, which started as result of the blast as police officials and bomb squad worked diligently to prevent any further untoward incident.

The store was stocked with arms and ammunition seized from the militants.

The room is used for the storage of recoveries in militant and criminal cases since 1930.

One of the injured was identified as Muhammad Shafi, incharge of the ammunition room. 

An eyewitness said that Shafi had just entered the room when the blast occurred as thick smoke and flames came out of the windows of the ammunition room.

“I saw him entering the room and suddenly there was an explosion,” said an eyewitness. He said the lawyers swiftly bussed the injured to the hospital.

Abdul Majeed, a firefighter who was pumping water from the window of the ammunition room said he saw the whole room blackened with thick smoke and debris.

“Nothing was visible inside — it was only smoke,” he said.

The lawyers and other officials of the lower court believe the blast in the ammunition room could have created a Khundroo like situation in the city.

Last year in 2007, an army ammunition reservoir at Khundroo in south Kashmir caught fire creating havoc in the area. 

The lawyers said that they have several times, in the past, requested for shifting the room from the court vicinity.

Nazir Ahmad Ronga, President Bar Association, said that at least four judges sit adjacent to the ammunition room in the ground floor of one of the buildings of lower court. “It is a dangerous place to work,” he said. “The ammunition has been lying there for the past 18 years.” 

“We have been asking the Chief Prosecuting Officer (CPO) to shift the ammunition dump somewhere else but nothing has happened,” he added.

Joint Secretary Kashmir Bar Association, Bashir Sidique said, “The authorities have several times declared the place unsafe. I fail to understand why the explosives have not been destroyed or shifted to some other place?” 

Sources said that the ammunition has been gathered from 25 police stations of the city and left in the ammunition room till the cases under trial are solved.

“The room contains fake currency. The possibility of someone’s involvement in the explosion cannot be ruled out,” the source said.

Fire service control room officials said the room is contained with seized material worth Rs 5 crore and added that the fire fighters averted a major tragedy.

“The building has suffered a huge loss and items worth Rs 8 lakh were burnt into ashes,” said an official of the department.

AMMUNITION TO BE SHIFTED FROM DISTRICT COURT 

February 29: The arms and ammunition in the recovery room (Maalkhana) of the district court here will be shifted from the court premises on coming Sunday, sources said.

 Sources said the court authorities have written to the police to shift the ammo from the court premises. They said a bomb disposal squad will enter the maalkhana (store) the room used to store ammunition seized from militants, on Sunday to clear it off the explosives and transfer the same to district armory. 

 On February 22, a grenade had exploded in the recovery room when its in-charge employee was searching for some ammunition to be produced before court. Two persons, the in-charge and a senior attorney were injured in the blast. The explosion was followed by fire.

 Following the blast, lawyers working in the court had demanded ammo transfer to other place. The lawyers said that the presence of the maalkhana was a constant threat to them and also to people visiting the court and surrounding locality. 

 The reports said March 2, (the Sunday) was selected due to least movement in the court. “Since it is unknown what arms, ammunition and explosive substances are inside the room, the day (Sunday) has been chosen to avoid any accident,” sources said.    

They said, if possible, the explosives would be destroyed at the site or taken to some safer place for detonation. “It is expected that there are at least 122 grenades in the recovery room and probably some more explosive substances,” sources said.    

 The city police chief SA Mujtabah said they are looking into the matter. “We will see what part of the ammunition is needed to be destroyed or shifted,” Mujtabah said.  

KHUNDRU RESIDENTS RECOVER BOFORS SHELL

February 26: A boy was injured when an explosive device he was fiddling with went off outside his home at Gundpora Rampora Bandipore.

According to a police communiqué, the injured boy named as Ahthisham-ul-Haq son of Muhammad Sultan Shah has been hospitalized. 

Meanwhile, the people of Shah Mohalla Khundru Islamabad recovered a Bofors shell from a Nallah.

According to a local news agency CNS, panic gripped the area after people found the unexploded shell. The residents later informed the police who handed over the shell back to the troops.  The people according to the news agency are still expressing apprehensions about the presence of unexploded shells in the fields, which were scattered during the explosion of ammunition depot in August 11 last year.  

The troops of 42 Rashtriya Rifles and SOG cordoned off the Dadsar Tral area and launched a search operation. According to CNS the troops asked the people to come out of their houses and subjected them to identification parade. The search party, the news agency said, ransacked many houses, but no one was arrested. 

Meanwhile, the troops claimed on Feb 26 that they have busted a hideout at Nadwanpore Budgam Nallah and recovered some arms and ammunition.

TROOPER ABDUCTS WOMAN

February 29: Sakeena wife of Nazir Ahmad Bajad, of Kati Wangath was abducted on gunpoint a by local Territorial Army personnel Fayaz Ahmad Bajad, son of Ishar Bajad, of Poshker Kangan. Police has registered a case under section 365 RPC, 7/25 A. Act in Police station Kangan.

LAWYERS HOLD DEMO AGAINST RIGHTS ABUSES

 February 27: Police on Feb 27 arrested nearly two-dozen lawyers demonstrating against unabated human rights abuses by armed forces in the state.  The lawyers under the banner of High Court Bar Association marched from the Lower Court toward the office of United Nations Military Observers’ Group in India and Pakistan (UNMOGIP) at Sonwar to hand over to the UN officials a memorandum listing rights abuses by Indian armed forces. But police stopped the lawyers near Sheri Kashmir Park and detained several of them. 

 Muhammad Ashraf Bhat the general secretary of HCBA challenged Indian diplomats to discuss the Kashmir dispute at an open form, and told them to come “out of their shells and see how Kashmiris are fighting for freedom and how they have sacrificed nearly one lakh youths for that goal.” 

  Bhat said the “Indian government has tried every imaginable human rights abuse like murder of civilians in fake gunfights, but failed to suppress the freedom movement in Kashmir.”

 “After 60 years of continuous harassment by Indian troops, people are still demanding freedom from Indian occupation,” Bhat said.

 President of HCBA Nazir Ahmad Ronga said the lawyers wanted to draw attention of international community towards the human rights abuse committed by the “occupational forces and state agencies in Kashmir.”

 Joint Secretary HCBA, Bashir Sidiq, told a police officer that was stopping the lawyers’ march, “We want to submit the memorandum because Kashmiri nation was suffering human right abuses at the hands of state government and occupational forces.”

  Former president of HCBA Mian Abdul Qayoom said, “India has failed to suppress the freedom in Kashmir for the past 60 years, and its frustrated security agencies are now picking up Kashmiri youth from some place on some particular date and then framing them in fictitious cases in some other place, and their arrests are recorded on a different date,” Qayoom said.

 Mian Qayoom said hundreds of Kashmiri prisoners languishing in different Indian jails were not allowed to perform religious duties, and denied proper food and clothing. 

 “They are treated like criminals; their only sin is they dreamt of a free and independent Kashmir. But we assure them that we are with them till we get freedom from Indian occupation,” Qayoom said.

INDIA MISLEADING WORLD ON DISAPPEARANCES 

February 28: The Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) on Feb 28 said government of India had not acknowledged the phenomenon of enforced or involuntary disappearances (EID) in Kashmir. The APDP held a protest demonstration on Feb 28 in SK Park against the disappearances.

  The Association hailed the judgment of Supreme Court of Nepal directing the Nepal government to enact a law, which treats the act of EID as a criminal offence.

 “The step has come up even though the Nepal government is not a signatory to UN Convention for the Protection of All Persons from Enforced or Involuntary Disappearances,” the spokesman said. “But it is ironic that despite being a signatory to the Convention, the Government of India is not doing anything related to the EIDs.”

 The members urged the government of India to learn from the Nepali government and address the issue of EIDs in Jammu and Kashmir, where, according to them, the EID cases are eight times more than in Nepal. “In J&K there are already 10,000 EID cases,” they said.  

“The Government of India is one of the four Asian countries to have signed the United Nation Convention for protection of all persons from Enforced and Involuntary Disappearances,” Mir said.

“The Government of India and the State government have not yet acknowledged the phenomenon of disappearances. New Delhi gives ambiguous and deceiving statements relating to EID from time to time,” Mir said.

He termed the statement of a member of planning commission that the prime minister had given directions to trace all persons subjected to disappearance during last 19 years as “misleading”.

The demonstrators also demanded the urgent arrest of the associates of Papa Kishtawari. “Though Papa Kishtawari is in detention, his associates are still roaming in the city. They should be arrested soon,” said Zahoor Ahmad Mir whose father Ali Muhammad Mir was murdered by Papa Kishtawari.

REPORTED DISAPPEARANCE

·  DISAPPEAR OR ARRESTED

February 20: A 25-year-old man has gone missing from Matrian Kamal Kote Uri, news agencies reported. Lateef Ahmad Sheikh son of Hidayatuallah Sheikh has left home on February 18 and didn’t return. The family has expressed apprehensions about his safety.

Police has claimed to have arrested a militant of Hizbul Mujahideen at village Maratgam Handwara on Feb 19. The police communiqué said that arms and ammunition were recovered from his possession.

·  A LABOUR DISAPPEARS

 February 26: The family of a labourer has expressed concern over his sudden disappearance from Budgam.

 According to a local news agency CNS Muhammad Rafiq Kasana son of Abdul Hameed Kasana of Barna Ward Chadoora left his house for work on February 15, but didn’t return. The family has expressed concern over his safety. 

· RAJU FROM AZAD’S HOME REGION MISSING SINCE 2006

February 28: An ill-fated teenager, Muhammad Rafi Sheikh alias Raju, hailing from the Chief Minister Ghulam Nabi Azad’s native region had descended to Srinagar in search of a job. Here the wheel of fate catapulted him into the Police lock up where he vanished in thin air.

Police had arrested him in a spree of arrests made after a daredevil fidayeen (suicidal) attack on a Congress rally in Srinagar on May 21, 2006. A woman Zahida, also arrested in the same connection, was recently released only to bring sobs to Raju’s kin.

             “Raju had come all the way from Tillar village of Kishtwar, which is now a district. He was looking for some work to sustain his family; the boy ultimately began to work as a laborer in the city until he was picked up,” says Muhammad Shafi, one of Raju’s associates.

              Rafi according to the police statement in the court was picked up on July 31, 2006 from the city. A case under FIR no 51 of 2006 and booked under section 302 307, 120-B RPC and 7/27 of Arms Act was registered against him in the police stations Kothibagh and Batmaloo.

             Despite the release of Zahida, the woman accused by Counter Insurgency Kashmir (CIK) for being involved in May 21 fidayeen attack on the political rally in 2006, efforts to trace Raju are still not bearing any fruit.

             During interrogation the boy according to the police version revealed that he was in know of a cache of arms and ammunition stored by militants somewhere in Jammu province.

            The Police record said: “A police party was arranged to take the boy to the place of arms dump but during the raid the accused gave a slip to the police party and managed to run away and vanished.” 

             But Raju’s kin have refuted the Police version and keep on alleging that the boy has been killed by the police in custody.

            “The police statement is a fabricated story,” Muhammad Shafi added.

              Raju’s aged mother could only once manage in past two years to attend the court in Srinagar to seek justice. “But she is dying to see the killers of her son punished in the court of law,” said Urfi, Advocate M Abdullah’s assistant.

J&K STATE HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION

FIRING ON PROTESTERS IN LOLAB

SHRC ASKS IGP KASHMIR TO SUBMIT REPORT BY FEBRURY 25

Srinagar, February 12: The State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) has directed the Inspector General of Police Kashmir Zone to submit a report about the incident of firing on protesters by Rashtriya Rifles soldiers in Lolab area of Kupwara district on Feb 11. 

Taking suo-moto cognizance of a report published in media on Feb 11, the SHRC has asked the IGP to present the report by February 25.

The acting chairperson of SHRC, H U Mir in a statement issued on Feb 12, quoting the report, said ten persons were wounded when Army opened fire and resorted to lathicharge to disperse a protest rally in Kupwara. 

The protesters were demonstrating against the troops who had severely thrashed Jehangir Ahmad Mir, Headmaster of Government Middle School Hayatpora Lolab, suspecting that blood stains found near his house belonged to some militants, which the troops suspected were hiding in Mir’s house. 

“Tasleema wife of Jehangir Ahmad Mir was with her husband when he was taken away by Major Rahul of 29 RR, and in the meantime Mudasir and Javid, (nephews of Jehangir Mir) intervened when they found their uncle thrashed by the Army. Both these persons were injured with shots of the troops and they were hospitalized in Bone and Joints Hospital. The villagers took to streets, seeking the administrative intervention,” the statement said. 

 
“This Commission with its conscientious obligation should intervene for protection and preservation of the Human Rights. Thrashing and intimidating the people is violation of basic human rights guaranteed by the constitution and by the provisions of the J and K State Human Rights Protection Act. This Commission therefore takes cognizance of the news report flashed by media and accordingly notice is sent to IGP Kashmir for submitting the report by February 25,” it added. 

 
The Commission also issued notice to Deputy Commissioner Kupwara for submitting report on the incident. Besides the Commission also sent notice to Jehangir Mir, for his statement that would be recorded.

ANNUAL REPORT 2006-2007: SHRC LAMENTS ITS FLAWS
February 2: The State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) has numerous deficiencies and impediments which is hindering in functioning of delivering justice to the people and upholding the human rights, says the body in its annul report 2006-07.

 “The commission’s composition as said in previous report continues to exist as two posts of members are still vacant and haven’t been filled so far. The deficiency hampers the commission to fulfill the job and administer justice to all districts and to the people of far-flung areas of the state,” said SHRC in its report. The report has recommended establishment of a high level committee consisting of cabinet ministers to go through the recommendations of the commission and take decisions thereof. 

 
The deficiencies pointed out by the commission in the report are:

Less Staff Strength

The commission shall have its own staff but practically this provision has been kept in cold storage and instead of implementing the same, government has provided maximum staff from the administrative department virtually on deputation. The commission should have been provided with its own staff after proper selection. The commission has consistently been requesting to the government to filling up five posts of presenting officer and four junior scale stenographers against the available vacant posts in the commission. Besides, the posts of computer operator, library assistant, camera man, senior assistant, chowkidar-cum-safaikaramcahri, driver and information officer have been proposed by the commission to be created for running the commission effectively.

Lack of Investigating Agency 

SHRC should have its independent investigating agency headed by Inspector General of Police (IGP). The IGP was withdrawn from the commission in the year 2002 and since the government has not posted the IGP. The commission doesn’t have any investigation mechanism with the result the commission has to rely upon the same police agency against which complaints are mostly lodged in the commission. Emphasis is laid on providing the said investigative agency to the commission, as required in the act. The post of IGP may immediately be filled.

Without Accommodation

 SHRC still continues to be houses in a private accommodation, which was occupied by the commission in December 1997. The government has transferred old settlement recode room at Moulana Azad Road for accommodating the commission. Structure of two storeys of this building has been raised three years back and the construction has been stopped for known reasons. It has all been stressed upon the government to finalize the construction of the building so that commission would be shifted to the building.

Observance in Breach :

The commission is disappointed to place on record to the effect that its entire recommendations are blatantly rejected by the government. What the government does in this behalf, they send the commission’s recommendations to concerned deputy commissioners who forward it to Tehsildars for necessary action. But till date these recommendations are rejected by revenue officers though the recommendations made by the commission are well reasoned. This attempt is usually done by the deputy commissioners concerned who in no way can sit over the recommendations of the commission which is headed by the retired judge of the high court as higher form. We admit that judgments of the commission are recommendatory in nature and government cannot be compelled to implement these recommendations.  

However sincerity should be shown by the government in dealing with such recommendations of the commission. We suggest that the government should constitute high level committee consisting of cabinet ministers to go through the recommendations of the commission and take decisions thereof.

SUCIDES BY TROOPS
·  BRO DRIVER COMMITS SUICIDE

February 1: A driver of Border Roads Organizations (BRO) was found dead in BRO cam. Identified as Harbhajan Lal, 50 a resident of Bihar was found hanging in the BRO camp in Haripora. 

Assistant Executive Engineer BRO Dharminder Singh said the deceased had recently come back from his home and was upset after resuming his duty. Police has registered a case and started the investigation.

·  SOLDIER COMMITS SUICIDE

February 3: An armyman allegedly committed suicide by hanging himself from a tree in the military hospital (MH) premises here, a defence spokesperson said.

Signalman Balbir Singh (32) of 80 Brigade Signal Company, resident of Gandhi Nagar area of this city, was found dead February 3 morning, Lt Col S D Goswami told UNI.

·  CRPF JAWAN FOUND DEAD

February 28: A Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) jawan allegedly committed suicide by hanging himself with the railing of the stairs inside his battalion at Sector 3 Channi Rama.

The deceased has been identified as Rishikesh Singh Badoria resident of Gwalior. He was presently posted in 91 Battalion CRPF Channi Rama, Jammu.

Police said that he performed Sentry duty from 3 AM to 5 AM in the morning and then committed suicide by hanging with the railings of the staircase.

The body was shifted to the Government Medical College (GMC) mortuary where after autopsy it was handed over to the CRPF authorities.

Police has initiated inquest proceedings under section 174 Cr PC in this connection

· TROOPER KILLED

February 28: A CRPF trooper, posted on guard duty at Doordarshan Kendra here, was killed on Feb 28 when his service rifle went off accidentally, a police spokesman said. 

Head constable Nareshwar Ram of 79 Battalion CRPF received serious injuries due to accidental fire from his service rifle, he said.

He added Ram was rushed to a hospital but he succumbed to injuries.

OFFICIAL STATEMENTS
·  VIOLENCE GRAPH GOES DOWN, NO DISAPPEARANCE     

    IN 2007: CM 

February 1: Chief Minister Ghulam Nabi Azad said large numbers of militant commanders were killed last year as compared to last 20 years.


“It has severely affected the militants,” Azad said while talking to the media in his Secretariat office. 


He said lesser number of civilians; troops and political leaders were killed last year. “Many people contest my recent statement about zero custodial disappearances last year. 


They must understand custodial disappearance means when a person disappears in police custody and no such case has come up in the last year,” Azad said. 


According to CM there was a time ‘when 17 and 18 custodial disappearance would occur in a year.’  

· 950 TO 1000 MILITANTS ACTIVE: IG CRPF

February 11: The strength of militancy is decreasing day by day and recruitment of local militants is very minimal in valley. While answering media Inspector of Central Reserve Police Force said.  

"Around 950 to 1000 militants are active in valley and we are trying best to curb them from the ground which will result in peaceful elections in the coming months".

· INDIANS CAN BUY LAND IN KASHMIR: BAIG 

New Delhi, Feb 12: Deputy Chief Minister Muzaffar Hussain Baig on Feb 12 dispelled the notion that Indians cannot buy land in Jammu and Kashmir stating that it was possible under the provisions of "our constitution". 

Addressing at New Delhi during a function organized to set off the traditional torch for the National Winter Games at Gulmarg next week, Baig said, "I want to dispel the notion that Indians cannot buy land in Jammu and Kashmir. There is a provision in our constitution by which they can invest in industry, tourism and health sectors". He said that government was ready to encourage the investors to invest in the state especially in the sectors like tourism, which were booming in spite of militancy. However, he said that there was substantial decline in the violence in past few years though "we were far from reaching normalcy". Infiltration from across the border, he said had gone down by 40 percent. Mr. Baig further said that role of Pakistani state was also diminishing in aiding and abetting militancy as "they are themselves facing this menace". "These groups (like Lashkar) are under nobody's control and are everybody's enemy" he said.

· LAND LEASE FOR LOCALS ONLY: BAIG  

February 16: The Deputy Chief Minister Muzaffer Hussain Baig on Saturday advocated that the State of Jammu and Kashmir should not lease out land to outsiders. He said land should be given on lease only to the state subjects for construction of hotels and in case they need to bring material from outside the state or country, it should be tax-free.  “Preference should be given to locals for industrial development and infrastructure building,” he told Greater Kashmir.  

 Baig said even a child in India and Jammu and Kashmir knew that no non-State subject could purchase land in the State. “The statement attributed to me is outrageous,” he said, adding that as the Advocate General of the state in SL Dhar case, he had taken the position that if Article 370 of the constitution was abrogated then India will have only the Instrument of Accession  

Baig told media that as an advocate general of the State in S.L Dhar case he had taken position that if article 370 of the Constitution was abrogated then India would have only Instrument of Accession to govern Jammu and Kashmir State. He said the Instrument of Accession had left New Delhi with only three matters, external affairs, currency and communication.  He said the Article prohibited leasing out of land to outsiders. But transfer of property act 1978 passed during Sheikh Abdullah’s rule allowed the government to lease out land to outsiders for industrial development, he added.  

· 130 MILITANTS IN REASI ALONE: ARMY  

Jammu February 17: Over 130 militants including 40 non-locals are operating in Reasi district and its adjoining areas.

 This was disclosed by Deputy General Officer, Commanding Uniform Force CIF (U) Brigadier KSS Guleria during an interaction with media persons after flagging off a recruitment rally at Reasi.

 “Around 40 foreign militants representing different outfits are active in Reasi district and its adjoining parts,’’ Brigadier Gularia said, adding that militants are adopting various methods to ‘misguide’ youths to adapt the path of violence.

· LAND CAN BE GIVEN TO OUTSIDERS: AZAD

    YES, NO, YES...

February 18: After Deputy Chief Minister Muzaffer Baig took a U-turn by advocating that land should be given on lease to state subjects only, Chief Minister Ghulam Nabi Azad said that there was nothing wrong in offering land on lease to outsiders for developmental purposes.

                  “We need outside investment for the development. We’re not selling the land and giving ownership rights to outsiders, but leasing it out for development of infrastructure,” Azad told reporters after inaugurating 5th Winter National Games in Gulmarg.

          Last year the Government had to face serious opposition when it decided to give land in Gulmarg on lease to outside State investors. The government later had to withdraw the order under tremendous public pressure. Baig later said that he was misquoted.

· 800 MILITANTS ACTIVE IN VALLEY: CRPF

February 20: The central reserve police force (CRPF) claimed that around 700 to 800 militants are still active in Kashmir valley during a function organized by the CRPF. Its Inspector General (IG) S.K Jain also stressed upon the need for human rights knowledge to the CRPF personnel deployed in the state for effectively carrying out anti-militancy operations.

                    "According to our information based on intelligence inputs, around 700 to 800 militants are active in the valley," the IG told reporters, after honoring 17 officers and jawans for their outstanding work during duty including participation in anti insurgency operations in the state. He said that the violence level has drastically declined in the valley. However, Jain said that it is important for the paramilitary force to provide human rights knowledge to its personnel so that they act more nicely, while performing their professional duties in the conflict-ridden areas.

                    "There are jawans in our force, who have been recruited 40 years back in CRPF and they do not know much about the human rights. To make it an effective and accountable force, the knowledge of the human rights is very important for the force," he said. 

                    Replying to a question on recent increase in the number of encounters in the valley, the IG stated security authorities had already predicted that during the months of November - December the incidents of exchange of fire start increasing. This is because the militants come down from the forest areas towards populated places after the snowfall," he said. 

· INFILTRATION ON DECLINE BUT ATTEMPTS UP: ARMY CHIEF

NEW DELHI, February 23: Though the infiltration of militants from across the Line of Control (LoC) in Jammu and Kashmir was on decline, the attempts had gone up in the recent past, Army Chief General Deepak Kapoor said. 

                    “Let me give you a comparison between 2006 and 2007. In 2006, the infiltration was approximately 343 as per our count. In 2007, the figure stood at 311," he said in an interview here. So there was a marginal decline as far as infiltration numbers were concerned, Gen Kapoor added.

                    "But as far as the attempts or bids (are concerned), they were slightly higher in 2007," the Army Chief said in the interview to CNN-IBN for its devil’s advocate programme, to be telecast tomorrow night.

                    General Kapoor expressed serious concern over the repeated use of the Army to handle internal insurgencies and communal disturbances, saying it undermined the "deterrence effect" of the troops. "The Army must only be used as a last resort and for a minimal period," he said.

·  VIOLENCE DOWN IN KASHMIR: JAISWAL  

NEW DELHI, February 27: Minister of State for Home Affairs Sriprakash Jaiswal on Feb 27 claimed that militancy related incidents in the state have decreased during the past two years.

Replying to a question in Rajya Sabha, Jaiswal said that 1667 incidence of violence occurred in 2006, which further declined to 1092 in 2007. Troops and paramilitary troops say that the militant groups are fast losing their grip in the state and say their numbers have been reduced to a handful. Recently a paramilitary CRPF officer said that a total of 1000 militants operate in the state.

               A top police officer said, “Militants are on the run.”

· MILITANT STRIKES DECREASING: POLICE

SRINAGAR, February 28: An uneasy calm continues to prevail on militancy front in Kashmir. The police and security officials claim that the silence is because the militants have lost the strength to strike particularly at the police and security forces.

                However, independent observers feel that the fast changing developments in Pakistan did affect the militancy front. S M Sahai, Inspector General of Police (IGP), Kashmir said the level of violence initiated by militants is very low. "84 percent of violence is infact initiated by security forces and police while only16 percent is by the militants," he said.

               Elaborating, Sahai added that whenever police and security forces get information about the presence of militants anywhere, they act quickly and in the subsequent encounters the militants get killed. Sahai revealed that about 500 militants including foreigners are presently in Kashmir

              "Twenty five militants were killed during last six months and 13 of them in January and February only. The killing of security and police men, civilians and politicians has come down," he added.

                A senior police officer in south Kashmir said that there is tremendous decrease in militancy-initiated violence; there was no let up in anti militancy operations by us. Police and security forces killed 30 militants mostly commanders during the period," the officer said. 

              He stated that there are a number of reasons for decrease in militancy-initiated incidents. "We killed large number of militant commanders. This demoralized their groups. Secondly, we improved our operations and due care was taken to avoid inconvenience to people," he said.  

              But police and security agencies did not give much importance to his statement on the grounds that militants have lost the capacity to strike and that is why they try to make peace initiatives. "Why did militants not make such a statement in the previous elections when they were calling the shots," said a senior police officer.

KILLINGS IN THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY

	DATE
	SOLDIERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	Feb01
	-
	5
	-
	1 BRO driver

	Feb02
	3
	4
	-
	-

	Feb03
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Feb04
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb05
	1
	2
	-
	-

	Feb06
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Feb07
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb08
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Feb09
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Feb10
	-
	1
	-
	1 Troops informer 

	Feb11
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Feb12
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb13
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb14
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb15
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Feb16
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb17
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Feb18
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb20
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb21
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Feb22
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Feb23
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb24
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb25
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Feb26
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb27
	2
	-
	-
	-

	Feb28
	1
	4
	-
	-

	Feb29
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	8
	32
	1
	2

	                                                                                                 In Toto 
	 43 Killings 




	Date
	Custodial and Extra judicial Killings
	Women killed
	Children Killed
	Alleged Disappearances

	Feb15
	-
	-
	-
	1

	Feb 18
	-
	-
	-
	1

	Total
	0
	0
	0
	2


CHRONOLOGY OF THE INCIDENTS
Feb 1: Four LeT militants from Pakistan were killed in encounter with troops at Drasu village in Rafiabad. One more militant identified as Rahul Bhat was killed in Tangund village of Kulgam district of South Kashmir. While a driver of Border Roads Organizations (BRO) was found dead in BRO cam. Identified as Harbhajan Lal, 50 a resident of Bihar was found hanging in the BRO camp in Haripora. 

Feb 2: Four suspected militants of LeT, two policemen and a soldier were killed in a gun battle near the Line of Control in Poonch district of Jammu.

Feb 3: An armyman allegedly committed suicide by hanging himself from a tree in the military hospital (MH) premises, a defence spokesperson said.

Feb 4: No incident of violence reported from any part of the valley. 

Feb 5: Two militants were killed in an encounter with troops in Sunderbani area of Rajouri district. While a non-commissioned officer (NCO) was found dead in mysterious circumstances in an army camp at Doda.  

Feb 6: One militant was killed in Bindi Gala Rajouri district. The identify of the slain militant was not ascertained. 

Feb 7: In an encounter with troops and militants in Tral area of Pulwama district caused injuries to a soldier of army.  

Feb 8: Three LeT militants were killed in Poonch district of Jammu provision. The identity of the slain militants were not ascertained.  

Feb 9: One Hizb-u-Mujahideen commander, Hanief Khan was killed in an encounter with police and para-military CRPF troopers at Noorpora Tral

Feb 10: A Harkat-ul-Mujahideen militant was killed in an encounter with police and troops in Sopore town of north Kashmir’s Baramulla district. The deceased was identified as HuM commander for north Kashmir Mohammad Usman alias Usman Tunda of Mansera Pakistan was killed. Meanwhile, unidentified gunmen shot dead Haji Sharif son of Nawab Ali 

at Thera in Salhutri area of Poonch district. Haji was reportedly working for the troops.

Feb 11: Two militants of Hizbul Mujahideen were killed by police, Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) and army in a joint operation at Palhalan Pattan in north Kashmir’s Baramulla. Police identified the killed militants as Zahoor Ahmad Ganie son of Ghulam Nabi Ganie of Chanderhama Pattan and Nazir Ahmad Parray of Ghousa Bugh.

Feb 12: No incident of violence reported. 

Feb 13: No incident of violence reported.

Feb 14: No incident of violence reported from any part of the state.

Feb 15: Lashker-e-Toiba (LeT) commander and his associate were killed in an encounter in south Kashmir’s Pulwama.

Feb 16: No incident of violence reported from any part of the state.

Feb 17: No incident of violence reported from any part of the state.

Feb 18: No incident of violence reported.

Feb 19: No incident of violence reported.

Feb 20: Unidentified gunmen shot at and injured Sikandar Hayat, 45, son of Lal Din of Sakhi Maidan in Mendhar sector in Poonch outside his residential house. 

Feb 21: Three militants whom the police claimed were from JeM militant outfit were killed in an encounter in Jammu province. The identity of the slain militants was not yet ascertained. 

Feb 22: Army on Feb 22 claimed to have foiled an infiltration bid by killing two militants along the Line of Control in north Kashmir's Kupwara district. The identity of the slain militants were not yet ascertained
Feb 23: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the state.

Feb 24: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the state.
Feb 25: Ghulam Rasool Mir of Marwah Doda was killed after being severely thrashed by unidentified gunmen at Tata pani Marwah Doda on Feb 24 and he succumbed to injuries on Feb 25.

Feb 26:  Unidentified gunmen shot at and injured Muhammad Saleem Dar, 26, son of Muhammad Sultan of Chankhan Sopur, wounding him critically. Dar is a mechanic by profession

Feb 27: In an violent incident militants ambushed a patrol party of CRPF troopers at Check Naira village in Pulwama district killing two personnel namely Manoj Kumar of Haryana and Muhammad Rafiq of Poonch on the spot on Feb 27 evening. A youth, Mudasir Ahmad, was also wounded in the shootout.

Feb 28: Four Kashmiri militants of HM were killed in an overnight gunbattle with Police and Army at Saidpora in Shopoian district. The militants killed in the operation had been identified as Sayyar Ahmed Thokar and Riyaz Ahmed Thokar alias Abu Jihad of Chak Cholan, Sayyar Ahmed Bhat of Kilbal and Mohammad Iqbal of Udoora, Shopian. Meanwhile, a CRPF trooper posted in Jammu division committed suicide. 

Feb 29: A labourer working with army was found dead in suspicious circumstances in Kupwara on Feb 29. According to police, the deceased has been identified as Mushtaq Ahmad Mir son of Gul Muhammad of Samran of district Islamabad. The labourer was working with 02 ASD as an ammunition labourer.


A report by the Bar Association quotes Aijaz as saying that Delhi Police wanted him to admit before a magistrate he had brought a polythene bag from Srinagar containing RDX, but he refused after which the cops beat him mercilessly. When he did not succumb to the pressure of Delhi police, Aijaz said his wife and children were brought to the detention cell. He was threatened if he doesn't accept the crime, which he never committed; his wife will be paraded naked in the cell before his eyes.








“We don’t provide medicines and treatment to Kashmiri inmates as they are all militants. Militants don’t deserve to be treated humanely,” a Kashmiri imam detained at the Tihar Jail quotes the jailer as telling him.








On Feb 23, the deputy inspector general of police Doda Range has ordered an inquiry to probe the claim.


“A fact-finding inquiry has been ordered and if some discrepancies are found, we will seek an explanation from the security forces that recovered explosives from the site just short of 700 m from the venue, where Ms Gandhi had to interact with the people,” senior Superintendent of Police (SSP) Doda Manohar Singh told UNI.


 The DIG Doda Range Farooq Khan has ordered a probe into the matter under the supervision of the Doda SSP.








The local residents demonstrated against the troops and police on Feb 28 & 29 accusing them of using seven men including three brothers as human shield during the gunfight. They are the brothers Aftab Ahmad, Parvez Ahmad, and Shakeel Ahmad, sons of Abdul Ahad; Tufail Ahmad Bodha son of Abdul Majid, Nisar Ahmad Khan son of Ghulam Muhammad, Shiraz Ahmad Bhat son of Ghulam Hassan, and Gulzar Ahmad Gatoo son of Abdul Rashid. 


 The soldiers of 44 RR had picked up these men from Bongam, Shopian and took them close to the house where the militants were hiding. After protests by the local residents they were released. 








‘300 PEOPLE KILLED IN CUSTODY SINCE 1980’: REPORT


Feb 19: Over 300 people have been killed in custody in the past 18 years. 


                   Local news agency CNS, quoting report of an international news agency, said 311 people have been killed in custody and 111 have disappeared in the custody of army and other armed forces after their arrest. 


             The CNS quoting various human rights organization said the figures given by the agency are not factual. “Actually over 10,000 people have disappeared in custody of various security agencies and over 40,000 have killed in custody,” the CNS said.
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